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NOTICE 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 14TH (FOURTEENTH) ANNUAL GENERAL 

MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF GUJARAT METRO RAIL CORPORATION 

(GMRC) LIMITED WILL BE HELD ON SATURDAY, 21ST DECEMBER, 2024, AT 

01:30 P.M. THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCE (‘VC’) OR OTHER AUDIO VISUAL 

MEANS (‘OAVM’) FACILITY AT CEPT UNIVERSITY, CENTRE OF EXCELLENCE 

OF URBAN TRANSPORT SITUATED AT KASTURBHAI LALBHAI CAMPUS, 

UNIVERSITY ROAD, NAVRANGPURA, AHMEDABAD-380009, GUJARAT, INDIA 

TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS AT A SHORTER NOTICE. 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

 

01. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the 

Company for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2024 and Reports of the 

Board and the Independent Auditors thereon and Comments of the Comptroller 

and Auditor General of India. 

 

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial 

year ended March 31, 2024 along with, Independent Auditors report and Comments 

of Comptroller & Auditor General of India and the Board’s Report, for the financial year 

2023-24 thereon as placed before the meeting be and are hereby received, considered 

and adopted.” 

 

02. To consider the appointment & fixing of remuneration of Independent Auditor 

for F.Y. 2024-25. 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139,141,142,144 and other 

applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the underlying 

rules viz. Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, M/s. DGSM & Co., Chartered 

Accountants, Ahmedabad (FRN No. 101606W), appointed as Independent Auditors 

of the Company, by the office of Comptroller and Auditor General of India for the F.Y. 

2024-25 vide letter No./CA. V/ COY/GUJARAT,GUJMET(1)/785 dated 21/09/2024 

and a written certificate in respect to the same, have been received from the said 

Auditor, be and is hereby appointed as the Independent Auditors of the Company 

under Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the F.Y. 2024-25 to hold office from 

the conclusion of this meeting until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting 

of the Company on a remuneration as may be decided by the Board of Directors or 

any Committee thereof and agreed upon by M/s. DGSM & Co.”  
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By order of the Board of Directors 

Gujarat Metro Rail Corporation (GMRC) Limited 

 

                                                                                                                             

                 Sd/- 

Hitesh Bhamare 

Company Secretary  

Membership No. – ACS 33182 

Date: 18.12.2024   

Place: Gandhinagar 
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Notes: 

 

1. The General Circular numbers 14/2020, 17/2020, 20/2020, 02/2021, 02/2022,, 

09/2023 and 09/2024 dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020, May 5, 2020, January 

13, 2021, May 5, 2022, December 28, 2022, September, 25, 2023 and 

September 19, 2024  respectively, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 

(MCA) (collectively referred to as ‘MCA Circulars‘) permits holding of the Annual 

General Meeting (AGM) through Video Conferencing (VC) facility or other audio 

visual means (OAVM), without the physical presence of the Members at a 

common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

(‘Act‘) and MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company will be held through 

VC/OAVM. The deemed venue for the 14th AGM shall be the place of Meeting 

of the Company.  

 

2. Since the meeting will be held through VC or OAVM as per MCA circulars, 

physical attendance of the Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the 

facility for appointment of Proxies will not be available. Hence, Route Map, 

Proxy Form, Attendance Slip are not annexed to the Notice. 

 

3. Government Representatives / Members of the Company are to attend and vote 

at the AGM through VC/OAVM facility. The representative of “H.E. The 

President of India” and “H.E. The Governor of a State” intending to appoint their 

authorised representatives pursuant to Sections 112 of the Act, as the case 

may be, are requested to send the signed copy of the nomination letter in 

advance.  

 

4. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be 

counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.  

 

5. VC link for the Annual General Meeting (AGM) will be shared separately.  

 

To: 

1. All Members of GMRCL 

2. Directors of GMRCL 

3. Statutory Auditors 

4. Internal Auditors 

5. Secretarial Auditors 
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THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

Consent of shareholder for shorter notice 
[Pursuant to Section 101 (1)] 

  
To, 
The Board of Directors, 
Gujarat Metro Rail Corporation (GMRC) Limited 
(50:50 SPV of Govt. of India & Govt. of Gujarat) 
Block No. 1, First Floor, 
Karmayogi Bhavan, 
Sector – 10/A,  
Gandhinagar – 382010, 
Gujarat.  
 
 
I, ___________________________________ son / daughter of 
_______________________ resident of 
______________________________________ holding _____________________ 
Equity Share(s) of ₹ 10/- each in the Company in my own name /joint name, hereby 
given consent, pursuant to section 101(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 to hold the 14th 
Annual General Meeting on Saturday, 21st  December, 2024 at a shorter notice.  
  
 

Signature: _______________________________ 
 
 

Name: ___________________________________ 
              (IN BLOCK LETTERS) 

 
Date: 
Place:    
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BOARD’S REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-24 
 
DEAR SHAREHOLDERS, 
 

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the 14th Annual Report on performance of 

Gujarat Metro Rail Corporation (GMRC) Limited (50:50 SPV of Government of India 

and Government of Gujarat) along with the audited Financial Statement, Independent 

Auditors Reports for the financial year ended 31st March 2024. 

 
1. SUMMARISED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS : 

During the F.Y. 2023-24 your Company has made considerable progress towards the 

effective implementation and operations of the Projects.  

 

Following are the key financial highlights for the year under review:  

                                                                                                                    (₹ In Lakhs) 

Particulars As per Ind AS 
2023-24 2022-23 2021-22 

Gross Income / Turnover 87,268.18 14,867.23 9,674.11 

Profit /(Loss) Before Finance 

Cost and Depreciation  

62,626.28 395.75 3,143.68 

Finance Cost 7,556.81 13,466.73 1,107.23 

Depreciation 31,175.95 18,222.63 6,689.96 

Profit / (Loss) Before Tax 23,893.52 (32,077.19) (4,653.51) 

Less: Tax Expense - 7.92 - 

Profit / (Loss) after Tax 23,893.52 (32,085.11) (4,653.51) 

Other Comprehensive Income (63.68) (32.21) (31.40) 

Total Comprehensive Income 23,829.84 (32,117.32) (4,684.91) 

Add: Balance brought forward 

from the previous year 

(49,941.65) (17,824.33) ( 13,139.42) 

Balance Profit / (Loss) C/F to 

the next year 

(26,111.81) (49,941.65) (17,824.33) 

 
ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION : 

         (₹ In Lakhs) 

Particulars 
 

As per Ind AS 
2023-2024 2022-23 2021-22 

Capital Work in Progress 6,67,043.72 3,28,119.57 7,81,421.15 

Fixed Asset (Net Block) 11,10,236.44 10,35,600.64 2,78,520.44 

Intangible Assets (Net 

Block) 

44,954.52 41,407.36 42,108.64 
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2. OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE: AHMEDABAD METRO PHASE-I : 
 

Commencement of commercial operations of Ahmedabad Metro Phase-I has proved 

to be a game changer in intra-city transportation landscape in Ahmedabad. 

Ahmedabad Metro becomes most preferred choice among the commuters for their 

regular commuting needs. Various parameters of performance of Ahmedabad Metro 

during FY 2023-24 has been outlined as under:  

 

The F.Y. 2023-24 was a year of enthusiasm and achievements. Total revenue from 

operations of the Company has increased from INR 1,174.38 Lacs (PY 2022-2023) to 

INR 3,796.47 Lacs (2023-2024) in current reporting year. Total Income of the Company 

has stood at INR 87,268.18 Lacs in the Current Financial Year (2023-2024) in 

comparison to INR 14,867.23 Lacs (2022-2023) of previous financial year. The 

ridership response during the year has been very encouraging.  

 

3. INTRODUCTION : 

The commercial operations of Ahmedabad Metro Rail Project Phase-I have 

commenced on the entire route length of 40.02 kms with effect from 1st Oct, 2022. 

Details of Operational routes and schedules are as under: 

 

Particulars East-West Corridor North-South Corridor 

Operating Length (in KM) 19.45 18.84 

Nos. of Elevated Stations 

in Operations 
13 14 

Nos. of Underground 

Stations in Operations 
4 0 

Interchange Station Old High Court Interchange 

Depot Apparel Park Metro Depot Gyaspur Metro Depot 

Nos. of Trains in Daily 

Operations 

Weekdays: 10 + 1 Standby 

Weekends: 8 + 1 Standby  

Weekdays: 8 + 1 Standby 

Weekends: 7 + 1 Standby 

Operating Time** 

06:20 Hrs to 22:00 Hrs 

** The hours of train operations are subject to 

modification, depending on special events like Navratri, 

Diwali, Cricket Matches etc with prior public notice. 

 

 

4. TRAIN OPERATIONS: 
 

 Ahmedabad Metro Train Operations Plan have been designed, by keeping commuters 

needs in the center and necessary scheduling/rescheduling is being done in a timely 

manner on the basis of demand forecast and analysis of passenger movements 

pattern, across both corridors to cater to the fast, speedy and economy metro services 

10



Gujarat Metro Rail Corporation (GMRC) Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024                 

 

viz a viz comfortable travel experience. The operation schedules are dynamic in nature 

with a provision of adding/reducing trains from the network at any point of time.                

Phase-I of Ahmedabad metro is operated with a fleet of 15 Trains and 2 standby trains 

on both the corridors. 

 

 The commuter centric philosophy of GMRCL is embedded in every facets of metro 

operations. Therefore, timely feedback of commuters is being sought and necessary 

steps are initiated to enhance the commuters travel experience in Ahmedabad Metro. 
 

5. TRIP & HEADWAY MANAGEMENT: 

Brief Details on Train Operations 

Particulars East-West Corridor North-South Corridor 

Nos. of Trains in Daily 
Operations 

10 8 

Daily Average Nos. of Trips 154 155 

Headway** 
(The headway between trains is 

dynamic in nature as per the 

operational requirements.)  

Weekdays 
Flat 12 Min. 

Weekdays 
Flat 12 Min. 

 

 SPECIAL TRIPS DURING FESTIVALS AND IMPORTANT EVENTS: 
 

 The Train Operation hours were extended up to 2.00 AM (midnight) during the Ten(10) 

days Navratri festival to facilitate late night and safe intra-city commutation needs of 

citizens.  

 

 During Indian Premier League (IPL)-2023 & ICC World Cup-2023 matches held at 

Narendra Modi Stadium, Ahmedabad, special trains were operated as per match 

schedules for the ease of audience. 

 

 Besides generation of revenue, these efforts have played a significant role in keeping 

the city roads congestion free and providing safe, speedy & economic alternative over 

personal vehicles for the citizens of Ahmedabad. 

 
6. AVERAGE MONTHLY RIDERSHIP: 

 

 

During the year under review, Ahmedabad Metro had operated total 1046 nos. of Train 

Trips on both corridors. Details of the same are as under: 
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Passenger Journey 

Financial Year 
East-West 
Corridor 

North-South 
Corridor 

Total Passenger 
Journey 

Daily Average 
Passenger 
Journey 

2023-24 1,99,28,723 94,18,278 2,93,47,001 80,184 

 
Figure-1       Figure-2 

 

 

It can be seen from figure-1 that, the ridership numbers increases every month on both 

corridors. The East-West(E-W) Corridor attracted major ridership as compared to 

North-South Corridor (N-S), as it passes through major public nodes including the old 

city area as depicted in Figure-2 above. It is envisaged that, with completion of Phase-

II extending upto the state capital Gandhinagar, the ridership numbers on North-South 

corridor will rise significantly. 

  
 

7. AVERAGE MONTHLY REVENUE: 
 

 FARE BOX REVENUE: 
 
 

a. DETAILS OF MONTHLY REVENUE DURING FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-24 IS AS 
BELOW:  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Figure-1        Figure-2 
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In tandem with the rising ridership, the revenue from train operations have witnessed 

a significant rise. During the year under review, the Company have earned                     

Rs. 3,796.47 Lacs as revenue from operations. 

 

 NON-FARE BOX REVENUE: 

During the year under review, Non-Farebox revenue constituted revenue from train 
wrapping activities.  

 Total earning under Non-Fare Box revenue during FY: 2023-24 is INR 255.26 Lacs 

 

 Prominent Brands advertised in Ahmedabad Metro are as below: 

 

 Indian Oil 

 Gujarat Tourism, Govt of Gujarat 

 Vibrant Gujarat 2024, Govt of Gujarat 

 GTPL Digital Cable  

 Oppo Mobiles 

 Vivo Mobiles 

 Gujarat Titans  

 Haier Air 

 Zydus Pharma 

 Further, other avenues of NFBR are being explored and considered to be implemented 

in due course of time. 

 

8. NATIONAL COMMON MOBILITY CARD (NCMC): 
 

In alignment to the vision of Digital India, National Common Mobility Card (NCMC) was 

launched in the year 2019 by the Ministry of Housing & Urban Affairs (MoHUA). The 

existing payment infrastructure is equipped with NCMC facilities. The digital payment 

partners such as, Airtel Payment Banks (previously Paytm Payments Bank)  have  

associated with GMRC for issuance of co-branded NCMC at all Metro Stations to 

provide easy access of NCMC card to the commuters. 

 

9. PASSENGER COMPLAINTS REDRESSAL: 
 
 Towards its commitment, GMRC has setup a mechanism to redress the 

complaints/queries of commuters within stipulated Turn Around Time (TAT). 

 

 Total 1820 nos. of complaints were received during FY 2023-24 and all of them were 

redressed to the satisfaction of passengers. GMRC has achieved, passenger 

satisfaction of 99.99% during FY 2023-24.  
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 The bifurcation table showing the department wise complaints received and redressed 

is shown in the below given table and pie chart  

 

DEPARTMENT WISE PASSENGER COMPLAINTS ARE TABULATED BELOW: 

 

 
 

10.  ENERGY CONSUMPTION & GENERATION: 
 

Sustainability lies in the core of all activities of GMRCL Metro Operations. In alignment 

to the same constant endeavours are being made to augment the renewable energy 

infrastructure and reduction in dependency on the commercial Power Supply. 

Thus, in order to tap renewable energy sources GMRC has installed solar power plants 
with generation capacity of 0.2 MW. 

 

11. DIVIDEND & TRANSFER TO GENERAL RESERVE: 

During the year under review, considering absence of profits, your Board of Directors 

have not recommended dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2024. Therefore, no 

amounts were required to be transferred to the General Reserve. 

 

12. GLIMPSES OF PROJECT PROGRESS: 
 
Your Company has been entrusted with the responsibility of implementation and 

operation & maintenance of following projects: 

 
A. Ahmedabad Metro Rail Project, Phase-I 

B. Ahmedabad Metro Rail Project, Phase-II 

C. Surat Metro Rail Project Phase-I 

 

Nos. of Complaints 

Department 
Nos. of 

Complaints  
(in Nos.) 

AFC 73 

Architecture 1 

Civil 137 

E&M 64 

Higher Management 14 

Miscellaneous 72 

Operations 1329 

Rolling Stock 25 

Security 95 

Signalling & PSD 4 

Telecom 17 

Total 1831 
Total Ridership 2,43,70,773 

Passenger 
Satisfaction 

99.99% 
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Project wise progress details are as given below: 

 

A. AHMEDABAD METRO RAIL PROJECT, PHASE-I  (as on 31.03.2024): 
 
Ahmedabad Metro Rail Project, Phase-I have Metro Rail network for the following 

routes: 

Corridor 
Elevated Underground 

No. of 
Stations 

Route Length 
(in Kms.) 

No. of 
Stations 

Route Length 
(in Kms.) 

North – South Corridor 15 19.13 - - 

East – West Corridor 13 14.40 4 6.5 

Total 28 33.53 4 6.5 

 
DURING THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW FOLLOWING ACTIVITES WERE WITNESSED IN 
PHASE-1 
 

1. EAST-WEST CORRIDOR (THALTEJ GAM TO VASTRAL GAM) 
 

 OPENING OF KAKARIA EAST STATION (UNDERGROUND PACKAGE 1) 
 

The Kakaria East Station was formally inaugurated by the Hon’ble Chief Minister of 

Gujarat, Shri Bhupendra Bhai Patel on 8th March, 2024 through Video Conferencing 

mode was opened for general public during the year under review. Station showcases 

digitally printed art work depicting nearby tourist attractions like Kankaria Lake, Flora 

and Fauna, Local Culture, Etc. 
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2. NORTH-SOUTH CORRIDOR (APMC TO MOTERA STADIUM) 

 
 PALDI UNDERPASS (PACKAGE 2 & 3-ELEVATED) 

In order to ease the traffic snarls at the Jalaram Crossing in Paldi area and enhancing 

connectivity with areas like Ambawadi, Law Garden, Paldi, and Navrangpura of 

Ahmedabad City, an underpass has been constructed in association with Ahmedabad 

Municipal Corporation and Western Railways. 

This 450m long, 16.6m wide underpass features an artwork depicting Ahmedabad's 

rich heritage and biodiversity of the region. 

 
PALDI UNDERPASS 

 
B. AHMEDABAD METRO RAIL PROJECT, PHASE – II 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHTS OF AHMEDABAD METRO PROJECT, PHASE-II (as on 
31.03.2024) 
 
The Phase-II is an extension of the Phase-I that aims to connect the twin cities 

Ahmedabad and Gandhinagar. The Phase-II envisages following metro rail network: 

Corridor 
Elevated 

No. of Stations 
Route Length (in 
Kms.) 

Motera Stadium to Mahatma Mandir 20 22.84 

GNLU to GIFT City 2 5.42 

Total 22 28.26 
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Sr. No Activity Status 

1 Viaduct Complete 

2 Package C1 

3 Stations' final finishing work in progress 

4 Stations in advanced stage  

3 Station structure work complete 

3 Package C2 Final finishing work in progress 

4 Package C3 Civil construction work in progress 

 

The two (02) corridors, Motera to Mahatma Mandir and GNLU to GIFT City were 

awarded in 3 packages (C1, C2, and C3 packages). The construction activities on the 

said packages are being undertaken in a fast paced manner for scheduled completion 

in September, 2024. 
 

 TRIAL RUNS: 

The trial runs started in phases from the last week of February, 2024, between GNLU 

and Sector 1 and between GNLU and GIFT City. 

 

 
 

TRIAL RUN BETWEEN JUNA KOBA TO GNLU 
 

 

TRIAL RUN AT RANDESAN STATION   
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 PROGRESS IN PACKAGE C1 ( MOTERA TO GNLU AND TO GIFT CITY): 
 

 Significant progress has been achieved on Package C1which traverses between total 

10 kms from Koteshwar road to GIFT City. This stretch connects the twin cities 

Ahmedabad-Gandhinagar while highlighting the holistic development of this area.  

 

 Majority of the stations on this stretch are at finishing stages and likely to be 

commissioned in the next financial year. 

 

 NARMADA CANAL EXTRADOSE BRIDGE: 
 

 Extradosed Bridge across Narmada Canal is part of elevated viaduct of Ahmedabad 

Metro Project from Mahatma Mandir to APMC through North-South corridor. 

 

 The 303 mts long extradosed bridge built over Narmada canal is one of its kind 

structure. This bridge is a precast segmentally constructed by balance cantilever 

construction technique supported by stray cable intermittently in two planes. 

 

 
EXTRADOSE BRIDGE ON NARMADA CANAL 

 

 PROGRESS IN PACKAGE-C2 (RAYSAN TO SECTOR-1): 

The package C2 is a 6.5 Kms length stretch spanning over 5 stations between Raysan 

to Sector-1. These five stations are at the final stage of finishing work, along with 

landscaping and artwork inspired by the vibrant culture of Gujarat. 

SECTOR-1 & INFOCITY STATIONS 
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 PROGRESS IN PACKAGE C3 (SECTOR 10-A TO MAHATMA MANDIR): 

Package C3 spans cover 7.5 Kilometers and passes through seven stations from 

Sector-10A to Mahatma Mandir. The civil construction activities on this stretch are in 

advanced stage of completion. 

 

C. SURAT METRO RAIL PROJECT, PHASE- I  (as on 31.03.2024): 
 

Surat Metro Rail Project, Phase-I will have Metro Rail network for the following routes: 

Corridor 
Elevated Underground 

No. of 
Stations 

Route Length 
(in Kms.) 

No. of 
Stations 

Route Length 
(in Kms.) 

Sarthana to Dream city 14 15.14 6 6.47 

Bhesan to Saroli 18 18.74 -  

Total 32 33.88 6 6.47 

 

Surat Metro Phase-I having 2 Corridors and 38 stations is an approved Metro system 

being built by the Gujarat Metro Rail Corporation (GMRC) to serve Surat and its 

adjoining areas, details of which is tabulated as below. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHTS OF SURAT METRO PROJECT: 
 

 PROGRESS IN PACKAGE CS1 (KADARSHA NI NAL TO DREAM CITY): 
 

This is a 11.6-kilometer stretch having ten stations namely Dream City, Convention 

Center, Bhimrad, Surat Women ITI, VIP Road, Althan Gam, Althan Tenament, Roopali 

Canal, Majura Gate, and Kadarsha Ni Nal. Construction of this stretch is in progress.  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ALTHAN TENEMENT TO ALTHAN GAM BHIMRAD CASTING YARD 
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 PROGRESS IN PACKAGE CS2 (KAPODARA TO SURAT RAILWAY STATION): 
 

On this stretch of 3.46-kilometer construction of tunnel from Kapodara to Central 

Warehouse is at advance stage of construction.  

TUNNEL WORKS 

 PROGRESS IN PACKAGE CS3 (SURAT RAILWAY STATION TO CHOWK BAZAR RAMP): 

The package CS3 tunnel is a 3.56-kilometer section that passes through three stations: 

Chowk Bazar, Maskati Hospital, and Surat Railway Station. The tunnel construction 

activities are in progress in this area. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

UG STATION PROGRESS D-WALL AT SURAT RAILWAY 

STATION 
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 PROGRESS ON PACKAGE CS4 (SARTHANA STATION TO END OF UNDER GROUND 
STATION): 

Under package CS4 the viaduct section of 4.15 Kilometers passes through four 

stations i.e. Swaminarayan Mandir, Varachha Chopati Garden, Nature Park, and 

Sarthana. The construction activities on this stretch is under progress. 

 PROGRESS IN PACKAGE CS5 (BHESAN DEAD END TO MAJURA GATE STATION): 

This viaduct section on CS5 Package of 10.56 Kilometers traverses through ten 

stations i.e. Bheshan to Majura Gate. The construction activities on this stretch is under 

progress. 

SEGMENT ERECTION 

 PROGRESS IN PACKAGE CS-6 (MAJURA GATE TO SAROLI DEAD END): 
 

The 8.70-kilometer viaduct at package CS-6 passes through seven stations between 

Udhana Darwaja Saroli. The construction activities on this stretch is under progress. 

 PROGRESS IN DREAM CITY DEPOT: 
 

To cater to stabling requirements of Sarthana to Dream City Corridor, a depot is 

currently under construction at Dream City. This depot, spread over 27 hectares of 

land, is designed to accommodate the operational needs of Surat Metro network. The 

depot construction is progressing at fast pace. 
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DREAM CITY DEPOT 

 PROGRESS IN BHESAN DEPOT: 

 

To cater to stabling requirements of Bhesan to Saroli Corridor, a depot is currently 

being constructed at Bhesan. Spanning over 21.22 hectares of land, this depot is 

strategically designed to fulfill the operational needs of the metro system. 

This depot is capable of accommodating 20 lines having capacity to house two trains  

 
13. GLIMPSES OF SYSTEMS PROGRESS: 

 
1. ROLLING STOCK  

 

 
 
Regular maintenance and overhauling activities of the rolling stock is undertaken at 

the Apparel Park and Gyaspur Depot. The aforesaid depots cater to the stabling and 

maintenance of the trains of both i.e East- West & North-South corridors respectively. 
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Rolling Stock contract for Ahmedabad Metro Phase-II and Surat Metro Project Phase-

1 has been awarded to Titagarh Rail System Limited for 30 & 72 coaches respectively. 

 

2. TRACTION 

750 Volts DC Third Rail Traction System is adopted for Ahmedabad Metro Rail Project, 

Phase - 1 of Gujarat Metro Rail Corporation (GMRC) Ltd. 

 

In Ahmedabad Phase-1 Total 31  ASS-TSS have been commissioned successfully and 

under operation. Regular Maintenance Activities are being performed by Traction O&M 

department. Inspection of Third Rail, ASS-TSS and RSS are being carried out at 

regular intervals for operational checks and any abnormality in the system.  

 

Further, 750V DC Traction and Power Supply contract for Ahmedabad Metro Rail 

Project Phase-II and Surat Metro Rail Project Phase-1 has been awarded to 

consortium of Siemens India and Rail Vikas Nigam Limited. In Ahmedabad Phase-II 

total 20 Route KM of Third Rail and 8 no. stations has been commissioned successfully 

and under revenue operation since 17th September, 2024.  

 

Regular maintenance of the traction systems is carried out by GMRCL from time to 

time for smooth train operations.  

 
3. SIGNALLING SYSTEMS: 

 
Signalling systems for Phase-I has been operational since September, 2022. Similar 

systems arebeing extended in Phase-II of Ahmedabad Metro Rail Project. The 

signalling system installation and integration activities is under process. 

 

The signalling contractor for Surat Metro Rail Project has been finalised and the initial 

activities pertaining to the same are under progress 

 

4. TELECOMMUNICATION SYSTEM: 
 

An advanced telecommunication systems are adopted for the Ahmedabad Metro and 

similar technology is envisaged to be adopted for Ahmedabad Metro Rail Project 

Phase-II and Surat Metro Rail Project. 

 

Following Telecom infrastructure will be implemented in Surat Metro Rail Project 

Phase-I across all 38 stations and 2 Depots. 

 

4.1 TELECOMMUNICATION FOR TRAIN OPERATION: 

- IP PBX Telephone System Including Emergency Telephone 
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- Terrestrial Trunk Radio (TETRA) including In-Building System (IBS) and Train Radio 

System 

 

4.2 TELECOMMUNICATION BACKBONE : 

- Fiber Optical Transmission system consisting of GE (IP network) systems 

 

4.3 PASSENGER INFORMATION DISPLAY / PASSENGER ANNOUNCEMENT  
SYSTEM: 

- Passenger Information Display System (PIDS) 

- Public Address System (PAS) 

- Master Clock System (MCS) 

 

4.4 SECURITY / EMERGENCY SERVICES: 

- Closed Circuit Television System (CCTV) 

- Access Control and Intruder Detection System (ACID) 

- Centralized Digital Recording System (CDRS) 

- Cyber Security System 

 

4.5 OFFICE INTERNET: 

- Office Automation and Information Technology (OA/IT) 

- All the above cited systems are commissioned at all the stations in the two corridors 

viz. East - West and North - South and the two depots viz. Gyaspur and Apparel Park. 

5. AUTOMATIC FARE COLLECTION (AFC) SYSTEM:  

Contract has been awarded for “Design, Manufacturing, Supply, Installation, Testing 

and Commissioning, Maintenance of NCMC EMV based Automatic Fare Collection 

System based on PPP Revenue Model” for Surat Metro Rail Project Phase-1. 

 

Following Automatic Fare Collection (AFC) System infrastructure will be implemented 

in Surat Metro Rail Project Phase-I across all 38 stations and 2 Depots. 

 

5.1 FARE MEDIA: 

 

- Contactless NCMC EMV CSC 

- QR-Code based Paper Tickets 

- Mobile & Web based Ticketing- QR Code & NFC 
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5.2 STATION TICKETING FACILITIES INFRASTRUCTURE: 
 

- Ticket Vending Machine (TVM) 

- Ticket Office Machine (TOM)  

- Automatic Gates (AG) 

- Recharge Card Terminal Machine (RCTM) 

- Excess Fare Office (EFO) 

- Ticket Reader (TR)  

- Station Computer (SC)  

 

5.3 CENTRAL INFRASTRUCTURE FOR AFC SYSTEM : 
 

- Central Computer System of AFC   

- Central Back office System of AFC  

 

5.4 NETWORK INFRASTRUCTURE FOR AFC SYSTEM: 
 

 Station Level Network Infrastructure 

 Central Level Network Infrastructure 

All the above-cited systems will be commissioned for all the stations in the two corridors 

viz. East - West and North - South and the two depots viz. Dream City Depot and 

Bhesan Depot.  

 

14. FINANCIAL PROGRESS: 
 
JAPAN INTERNATIONAL COOPERATION AGENCY (JICA) LOAN: 

As per approved financing plan of Ahmedabad Metro Rail Project Phase- I, the Japan 

International Cooperation Agency (JICA) has sanctioned ODA (Overseas 

Development Assistance) loan of ₹ 6,066 crore (96,401 million JPY) to be disbursed 

in tranches. In first tranche, the loan amounting to 82,434 million JPY i.e. ₹ 5,182 crore 

approx. (Loan agreement date 04.03.2016 and Exchange Rate: 1.5908) and second 

tranche the loan amounting to 13,967 million JPY i.e. ₹ 884 crore (Loan agreement 

date 27.03.2020 and Exchange rate: 1.5800) would be disbursed. Out of 96401 million 

JPY, 82059.51 million JPY (₹ 5176.68 Cr.) have been disbursed till 31.03.2024. 

AGENCE FRANCAISE DE DEVELOPPEMENT (AFD): 

As per approved financing plan, the Surat Metro Rail Project is co-financed by AFD 

and KfW. Accordingly, loan of ₹ 5434.25 Crore (EUR 692.26 Million) has been 

sanctioned by AFD and KfW. As per the terms of co-financing, AFD has sanctioned 
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loan of ₹1962.5 Crore (EUR 250 Million) (Loan agreement No CIN 1125 01P dated 

28.01.2021 and Exchange rate: EUR = 78.50 INR). Out of 250 million (₹1962.5 Crore), 

EUR 31.49 million (₹278.96 Crore) have been disbursed by AFD till 31.03.2024. 

 

As per approved financing plan, the Ahmedabad Metro Rail Project Phase-II is co-

financed by AFD and KfW. Accordingly, loan of ₹ 2739.23 Crore (EUR 311 Million) 

has been sanctioned by AFD and KfW. As per the terms of co-financing, AFD has 

sanctioned loan of ₹1858.45 Crore (EUR 211 Million) (Loan agreement No CIN 1159 

dated 23.09.2023 and Exchange rate: EUR = 88.075 INR). Out of 211 million 

(₹1858.45 Crore), EUR 31.69 million (₹281.24 Crore) have been disbursed by AFD till 

31.03.2024. 

KREDITANSTALT FÜR WIEDERAUFBAU (KFW) LOAN:  

As per approved financing plan, the Surat Metro Rail Project is co-financed by AFD 

and KfW. KfW, Frankfurt am Main (KfW) has sanctioned ODA Plus loan of ₹1587.74 

Crore (EUR 202.26 Million) (Loan agreement No 30493 dated 17.12.2021 and 

Exchange rate: EUR = 78.50 INR) and Reduced Interest Loan (RIL) of ₹1884.00 Crore 

(EUR 240 Million) (Loan agreement No 30492 dated 17.12.2021 and Exchange rate: 

EUR = 78.50 INR). Out of total EUR 442.36 Million (₹3471.74 crore), EUR 70.96 

million (₹ 634.32 crore) have been disbursed by KfW till 31.03.2024. 

 
As per approved financing plan, the Ahmedabad Metro Rail Project Phase-II is       

co-financed by AFD and KfW. KfW, Frankfurt am Main (KfW) has sanctioned Loan of 

₹880.79 Crore (EUR 100 Million) (Loan agreement No 30780 dated 23.09.2023 and 

Exchange rate: EUR = 88.075 INR). Out of total EUR 100 Million (₹880.79 crore), EUR 

21.75 million (₹ 195.08 crore) have been disbursed by KfW till 31.03.2024. 

 
SUBORDINATE DEBT: 

As per Project Sanction letter, the Government of India and Government of Gujarat 

shall provide subordinate debt to the Company towards the Central and State taxes. 

State will also give subordinate debt for land 

 

.  
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During the year under review, sub-ordinate debt released by Government of 

India and Government of Gujarat is as under: 

Government of India Subordinate Debt for Central Taxes - 

Government of Gujarat Subordinate Debt ₹ 443.50 Crores  

TOTAL ₹ 443.50 Crores 

 

15. HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT: 

During the F.Y. 2023-24 following important activities were undertaken by the Human 

Resources Department: 

 

1. WORK-FORCE ENHANCEMENT: 
  
During the year under review, the company has increased its work force size by 245 

employees which includes Project and Operation & Maintenance staff at various levels. 

 
2. ORGANISED CHINTAN SHIBIR: 

On 3rd June, 2023, an Chintan Shibir event was organized at Training Institute, Apparel 

Park Depot, Ahmedabad, wherein all Deputy General Manager and above officers 

participated. The aforesaid event was organised with an aim to discuss and delve on 

the aspects of organizational effectiveness across all verticals of the Company.  

 
3. RECRUITMENT OF O&M STAFF FOR PHASE-II: 

During the year under review, to cater the increased operational activities GMRCL 

recruited around 294 executives in various disciplines such as station Controller (SC), 

Train Operator (TO) & Junior Engineer (JE) in Operation and Maintenance wing. These 

executives will undergo a comprehensive training at in-house training centre at Apparel 

Park Depot. 

 

16. EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT ACTIVITIES: 

 
1. CELEBRATION OF INTERNATIONAL YOGA DAY: 

To improve employee’s spirituality and better life style amongst the employees of 

GMRCL an International Yoga Day Celebration was held on 21st June, 2023, at 

Karmayogi Bhavan (Gandhinagar), Apparel Park Depot (Ahmedabad) and SUDA 

Bhavan (Surat) where around 100 employees participated. 
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2. CELEBRATION OF INDEPENDENCE DAY: 

As part employee engagement and employees connect with each other, on                            

15th August, 2023, 77th Independence Day was celebrated at Apparel Park Depot, in 

which around 350 members including employees and their family members 

participated. Flag was hosted by Shri Kishore Kumar, Director (SER). 

In addition, a drawing event were organized, where employees and their family 

members participated. Similar activities were planned at Surat Project Offices. 
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3. OBSERVING HINDI DIVAS:   

On 20th September, 2023, Hindi Divas was organized in auditorium, at Training 

institute, Apparel Park Depot. In the event following competitions were organized.   

1. Speech on Hindi Day on any one from listed topic. 

2. Hindi self-composed poetry recitation  

3. Hindi word games/phrase completion 

4. Completing Hindi words (quiz)/idioms 

In the competition, around 50 employees participated and around 250 employees 

attended the event. Three winners in all competitions were awarded with token of 

appreciation.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4. CELEBRATION OF REPUBLIC DAY:  
 

On 26th January, 2024, 75th Republic day was celebrated. Approximate 200 Nos. 

employees participated in the event and the flag was hosted by Shri. Kishore Kumar, 

Director (SER).  
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5. CYCLING EVENT:  
 
On 24th February, 2024, GMRCL had organized a Cycling event at Mahatma Mandir, 

Gandhinagar. The event witnessed participation from 110 employees including 

directors. Flag off the event by Shri Kishore Kumar, Director (SER). T-shirts and 

bicycles were arranged for participants.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

6. WOMENS DAY CELEBRATION: 
 

On 7th March, 2024, GMRCL arranged celebration of Women day at Info city Club 

Resort, Gandhinagar. In the event, approximate 90 Women Employee of GMRCL 

participated. The event provided a platform to share their views on awareness on 

Cervical Cancer and Breast Cancer most common amongst Women in India. It was 

followed by group activities. 
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17. TRAINING PROGRAMS: 
 

1. TRAINING PROGRAM ON POSH ACT ,2013: 

In order to spread awareness among working professionals regarding sexual 

harassment at workplace and the prevention, prohibition, and redressal of sexual 

harassment at the workplace, PoSH training was arranged for employees of GMRCL. 

A two-day session each for 3 hours starting on 08th June, 2023 & 09th June, 2023 

between 2.00 PM to 5.00 PM were scheduled. The session was scheduled online 

through Audio Video Mode of Conference.  73 GMRCL employees attended the 

session.  

 
18. ENTERPRISE RESOURCE PLANNING: 

The Enterprise Resources Planning (ERP) of your company is commensurate with the 

size and complexity of business of the Company. Your company have adopted 

digitization of various activities in organization administration, project implementation 

and train operation fronts in order to meet the project schedules as well as achieve 

operational efficiency. These systems are being reviewed on regular basis and 

upgraded from time to time to eliminate any kind of redundancies.  

 

Various ERP systems such as SAP, cloud applications and video conferencing 

systems have been established in your organization.  

 
19. PROJECT PLANNING ERP SYSTEMS: 

The project planning ERP systems encompasses following: 

 

Sr. 
No 

Software Function of the software 

1 AUTOCAD Design software 

2 MIDAS Civil          Engineering software for Design of Bridges and 

Civil structures 

3 STAAD Pro Structural Analysis and Design software 

4 Bentley Rail Track Civil Design software for Rail Networks 

including station, yard and overhead 

electrification line  

5 ARCGIS  Geographic Information system, creating and 

using maps, compiling geographic data, 

analysing mapped information. 

6 OASYS    For capacity analysis of structures 
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7 GMRC website Information about GMRC organization and 

Management, Metro Routes, Project status, 

events, news, photographs, Recruitment 

notifications, Tenders, Train Time Table, any 

important notifications etc. 

8 Polycom, Cisco Webex, 

Microsoft Teams 

Video conferencing software / systems 

   

Addition of New Software’s at GMRCL 

9 Autodesk BIM Collaborate 

Pro 

GMRCL moving towards paperless work. 

Cloud based Software to be used by P&D 

Department for Document management, 

Drawing review, Design Collabration, Plan, 

Model Co-ordination & Project management 

10 GMRCL’s Intranet Website Intranet web based portal developed for 

GMRCL’s employee for Latest events, Photos, 

Itercom number of all location. 

,GMRCL employee directory, All circular, policy, 

training material, format etc., Birthday wishes, 

Work anniversary wishes, GMRCL’s special 

recognition, New joining welcome, Launch pad 

for required website, GMRCL on Social media , 

Number of various counts of databank,  Search 

functionality on Home page. 

11 eSarkar Portal & eSign Digitalisation & paperless work started in 

GMRCL. 

83% cost saving on Printer Consumables after 

digitalisation. 

12 Geo-fencing Mobile based 

Attendance System 

Started Employee’s Attendance Software using 

Geo-Fencing based mobile application 

(Addition to Face Based Biometric Attendance 

Device) 
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GEO-FENCING MOBILE 
ATTENDANCE SYSTEM 

INTRA-NET FOR EMPLOYEES 
 

 
Gujarat Government E-Sarkar Portal 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

20. OPERATION & MAINTENANCE ERP SYSTEMS: 

 
The very basis of hassle free and smooth Metro Train Operations lies in the efficiency 

of all the acting attributes such as Telecom, Signalling, Platform Screen Doors, Rolling 

Stock and other allied systems. These system activities are interwoven in a manner 

that facilitates and monitor each facets of operation process on real time basis, right 

from the entry of a passenger in the metro station upto their exit at their destination 

station. GMRCL boasts to have established world class technology driven systems and 

software that become integral part of operation and maintenance function. 
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21. CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL : 

During the Financial Year 2023-24, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company was 

₹8000 Crores. 

 

During the year, the paid up share capital of the Company has been increased from 

₹3,965.98 Crores to ₹5,111.4094 Crores on account of contribution of additional equity 

by the Government of India and Government of Gujarat towards their agreed 

contributions for the respective projects. 

 

22. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL AND ITS ADEQUACY : 
 

GMRCL has laid down adequate system of internal controls, policies and procedures 

for ensuring orderly and efficient conduct of the metro operations business, including 

adherence to the Company’s policies, safeguarding of its assets, prevention and 

detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of the accounting records 

and timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures. 

 

The current system of internal financial control is aligned with statutory requirements. 

Effectiveness of internal financial control is ensured through management reviews, 

controlled self-assessment and independent testing by the Internal Auditors. 

 

The Company’s internal control system comprises of audit and compliance by in-house 

team from Finance & Accounts department supplemented by independent internal 

audit checks by Internal Auditors for F.Y. 2023-24. The internal auditors independently 

evaluate the adequacy of internal controls through 100% pre-audit process. 

 

During the year under review, no material or serious observations has been received 

from the Auditors citing inefficiency or inadequacy of such controls. 

 

23.  RISK MANAGEMENT / FRAUD PREVENTION: 
 

The Company has robust Business Risk Management framework to identify, evaluate 

business risks and opportunities and procedures thereof for periodically informing the 

Board / committee Members about the risk assessment and procedures for minimizing 

the risks. The Company monitors and reports on the principal risks and uncertainties 

that can impact its ability to achieve its strategic objectives. All the risks that the 

organization faces such as strategic, financial, credit, liquidity, security, property, IT, 

legal, regulatory, reputational and other risks have been identified and assessed and 

there is an adequate risk management infrastructure vide various policies which are 

capable of addressing these risks. 
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GMRCL adopts a multi-pronged risk management strategy; wherein risks are 

monitored and mitigated before they arise through a system of pre-emptive checks at 

various levels vide a multi layered risk defense mechanism consisting of in-house 

Finance Team, Internal Auditors, Independent Auditors and Management that is 

accountable to the Audit Committee of the Board. 

 

24. GENERAL INFORMATION: 
 

 ORGANIZATIONAL SET-UP: 
 

As you are aware your Company is a 50:50 jointly owned Special Purpose Vehicle 

(SPV) of Government of India and Government of Gujarat.   

 

Government of India and Government of Gujarat appoint Five (5) Directors each with 

the Secretary, Ministry of Housing & Urban Affairs (MoHUA), Government of India 

appointed as Ex-officio, Chairman of the Company. The Managing Director is the 

nominee of Government of Gujarat with prior concurrence of Government of India and 

appointed by the Board of Directors. The general powers of Management are vested 

in the Managing Director and he is assisted by the Functional Directors, Executive 

Director, Chief Financial Officer, General Managers, Company Secretary and other 

officers on deputation / contract basis.  

 

Progress made in implementation of the project is reported to the Board of Directors 

regularly and management takes effective steps, wherever necessary. 

 

25. DETAILS OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP): 

As on 31st March, 2024, the Board of Directors of GMRC Limited comprised of Eleven 

(11) Directors out of maximum fifteen (15) as provided in the Articles of Association of 

the Company.  

 

The following changes among the Directors took place during the year under review: 

 

 GOVERNMENT OF INDIA NOMINEE DIRECTORS: 
 

A. APPOINTMENTS: 
 

Shri Anurag Jain, IAS (MP:1989) - Secretary (HUA) (I/C) (DIN: 01779759), The 

Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs (MoHUA), Government of India  was 

appointed as a Nominee Director & Ex-Officio Chairman of GMRCL with effect from 

16th March, 2024 in accordance with Department of Personnel and Training 

(DoPT’s) Order No. 36/01/2024-EO(SM-l)(2) dated 04.03.2024 & No.K-

14011/39/2005-UT (Vol. III) dated 16th March, 2024 issued by the The Ministry of 
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Housing and Urban Affairs, New Delhi vice Shri Manoj Joshi, IAS, the then Secretary 

(HUA), The Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs, New Delhi. 

B. CESSATION / RESIGNATION : 
 

Shri Manoj Joshi, IAS (KL: 1989) Secretary (HUA), The Ministry of Housing and 

Urban Affairs, New Delhi has ceased to be a Nominee Director & Ex-Officio 

Chairman of GMRCL with effect from 04.03.2024 in accordance with Department of 

Personnel and Training (DoPT’s) Order No. 36/01/2024-EO(SM-l)(2) dated 

04.03.2024 & No.K-14011/39/2005-UT (Vol. III) dated 16th March, 2024 issued by 

The Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs, New Delhi. 

GOVERNMENT OF GUJARAT NOMINEE DIRECTORS: 
     

A. APPOINTMENTS: 
 

 Smt. Avantika Singh Aulakh, IAS- Secretary to Hon’ble Chief Minister, Government of 

Gujarat Joined the Board as Nominee Director of Government of Gujarat with effect 

from 15/06/2023 pursuant to order No. UDUHD/MET/e-file/18/2022/6502/DH dated 

04th February, 2023 issued by Urban Development and Urban Housing Department, 

Government of Gujarat. 

 

 Shri Ashwini Kumar, IAS- Principal Secretary, Urban Development and Urban Housing 

Department, Government of Gujarat Joined the Board as a Nominee Director of 

Government of Gujarat with effect from 04/08/2023 pursuant to order No. 

UDUHD/MET/e-file/18/2022/6502/DH dated 26th July, 2023 issued by Urban 

Development and Urban Housing Department, Government of Gujarat. 

 

B. CESSATION / RESIGNATION: 
 

 Shri Mukesh Kumar, IAS, Principal Secretary, Urban Development and Urban Housing 

Department, Government of Gujarat (UD&UHD) (DIN:06811311), has resigned from 

the post of Nominee Director of the Company w.e.f 4th April, 2023, vide order No. 

AIS/35.2023/16/G dated 31st March, 2023 issued by General Administrative 

Department, Government of Gujarat. 

 FUNCTIONAL DIRECTORS: 
 

A. APPOINTMENT : 
 

 Shri Anand Singh Bisht (DIN: 10064698) was appointed as Whole Time Director, 

Project and Planning with effect from 5th April, 2023. 
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 Shri Kishore Kumar was appointed as a Whole Time Director, System, Electrical & 

Rolling Stock with effect from 13th March, 2023. 

 
The Board welcomes new Directors and places on record its deep sense of 

appreciation for the valuable contribution made by all the outgoing Directors during 

their tenure on the Board of the Company.  

Pursuant to the provisions of section 203 of the Act, the Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company are – 
 
MANAGING DIRECTOR 
 

- Shri S. S. Rathore  

 
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) 
 

- Shri Jaydeep Shah, IA&AS    (Ceased to be a CFO w.e.f. 30th May, 2024)     
      

COMPANY SECRETARY 
 

- Shri Hiteshkumar Bhamare   

 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 

Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors.  

 

 Following changes among the Directors took place during the current Financial 

Year i.e. 2023 - 24 (updated up to the date of AGM) 

 

A. GOVERNMENT OF INDIA NOMINEE DIRECTORS: 
 

 The Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs vide letter No.K-14011/17/2017-MRTS-

Coord (E-3138656) dated Monday,02.09.2024 have nominated Shri Srinivas R. 

Katikithala, IAS (DIN: 00414340) (GJ:1989)-Secretary (MoHUA) as a Nominee 

Director, Government of India  & Ex-Officio Chairman of GMRCL in accordance with 

Department of Personnel and Training (DoPT’s) Order No. 36/01/2024-EO(SM-l) dated 

Friday, 16.08.2024 vice Shri Anurag Jain, IAS (I/c), the then Secretary (HUA). 

 

 Accordingly, Shri Srinivas R. Katikithala, IAS (GJ:1989) -Secretary (MoHUA) 

(DIN:00414340),has been appointed as an Ex-Officio Chairman & Nominee Director, 

GoI on the Board of Directors of the Company with effect from Monday, 2nd September, 

2024. 
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 Shri Sanjay Gupta, Chief Administrative Officer, Western Railways (DIN:09393952), 

Nominee Director, Government of India, on board of Gujarat Metro Rail Corporation 

Limited (GMRCL) has tendered his resignation w.e.f. Monday, 30th September, 2024 

pursuant to his superannuation from Ministry of Railways, Government of India. 

 

B. GOVERNMENT OF GUJARAT NOMINEE DIRECTORS: 
 

 Shri Jagdish Prasad Gupta, IAS, Additional Chief Secretary, Finance Department, 

Government of Gujarat has resigned as a Nominee Director, Government of Gujarat, 

w.e.f. Monday, 5th August, 2024, pursuant to Order issued by General Administration 

Department, Sachivalaya (GAD), Government of Gujarat AIS/35.2024/24/G dated 31st 

July, 2024. 

 

 Dr. T Natarajan, IAS, Principal Secretary, Finance Department, Government of Gujarat 

has be appointed  as a Nominee Director, Government of Gujarat, w.e.f. Thursday, 19th 

September, 2024, pursuant to Order issued by General Administration Department, 

Sachivalaya (GAD), Government of Gujarat AIS/35.2024/24/G dated 31st July, 2024. 

C. FUNCTIONAL DIRECTORS 
 

 RESIGNATION/ CESSATION 
 

 Shri Jaydeep Shah, IA&AS, Whole Time Director (Finance) & Chief Financial Officer 

(CFO) of the Company has ceased to be a director of the Company with effect from 

31st May, 2024 and is repatriated back to his parent cadre at Comptroller & Auditor 

General of India (C&AG), New Delhi pursuant to Order issued by Comptroller & Auditor 

General of India (C&AG), New Delhi dated 02.05.2024. 

 

 Shri Kishore Kumar, Whole Time Director, (DIN: 08211068) (Systems, Electrical & 

Rolling Stock) has resigned as a Nominee Director, Government of India with effect 

from 30th June, 2024, pursuant to his superannuation at parent cadre of Railway 

Board, Ministry of Railways, Government of India. 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 

Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors. 

 

26. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide the notification no. G.S.R. 839(E) dated 5th July, 

2017 have notified the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) 

Amendment Rules, 2017, wherein Unlisted Public Companies in the nature of ‘Joint 

Venture’ are exempted from the requirements of compliances as provided in section 

149(4) of the Companies Act, 2013. In view of the aforementioned notification your 
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company is exempted from the requirement of appointment of Independent Directors 

on the Board of Directors. 

 

27. SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE: 

During the year under review GMRCL has no subsidiaries, associates and Joint 

Ventures Companies as on March 31, 2024. 

 

28. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE 
REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN 
STATUS AND THE COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE: 
 

There is/are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or 

tribunal impacting the going concern status and the Company’s operation in future. 

 

29. REPORTING OF FRAUDS: 

During the year under review, neither the Independent Auditor nor the Secretarial 

Auditor has reported to the Audit Committee under Section 143(12) of the Companies 

Act, 2013, any instances of the fraud committed by the Company, its officers and 

employees, the details of which would need to be mentioned in the Board Report. 

 

30. BOARD EVALUATION: 

As per MCA Notification dated 5th June, 2015, provisions of section 134(3)(p) read with 

Rule 8(4) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 shall not apply to Government 

Companies, in case the Directors are evaluated by the Ministry or department of the 

Central Government which is administratively in charge of the Company or as the case 

may be, the State Government as per its own evaluation methodology. As GMRCL is 

a Government Company, the above provision is not applicable. 

 

31. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES: 

GMRCL being a Government Company, the provisions of section 197 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 shall not apply in view of the gazette notification dated 5th June, 

2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate affairs, Government of India. Therefore, 

particulars of employees drawing remuneration in excess of specified limits as 

envisaged by section 197 of the Act read with the relevant rules are not included in the 

Board’s Report. 

 

32. NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR: 

The Board of Directors met four (4) times during the financial year from 1st April, 2023 

to 31st March, 2024. The dates on which the meetings were held are: 24th April, 2023, 
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4th August, 2023, 29th  September, 2023 and 19th January, 2024 during the period under 

review. 
 

33. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD: 

The following Committees were constituted by the Board of Directors’: 

Committee Members as on 
31/03/2023 

Members as on date 
of Report 

Designation 

Audit 
Committee 
 

 

 

 

Shri Jagdish Prasad 
Gupta, IAS   

Shri Jagdish Prasad 

Gupta, IAS   

(Vacant due to 

resignation w.e.f. 

05.08.2024) 

Chairperson 

Shri Jaideep, OSD 

(UT) 

Shri Jaideep, OSD (UT) Member 

Shri Sanjay Gupta, 

CPM, WR, MoR 

 

Shri Sanjay Gupta, 

CPM, WR, MoR 

(Vacant due to 

resignation w.e.f. 

30.09.2024) 

Member 

Smt. Sunaina Tomar, 

IAS 

Smt. Sunaina Tomar, 

IAS 

Member 

Project 
Committee 
 

 

 

Shri S.S. Rathore Shri S.S. Rathore Chairperson 

Shri Jagdish Prasad 

Gupta, IAS   

Shri Jagdish Prasad 

Gupta, IAS   

 

(Vacant due to 

resignation w.e.f. 

05.08.2024) 

Member 

Smt. Sunaina Tomar, 

IAS 

Smt. Sunaina Tomar, 

IAS  

Member 

Shri Archunan T. Shri Archunan T. Member 

Nomination & 
Remuneration 
Committee 
(NRC) 

Shri Jaideep, OST 

(UT) 
Shri Jaideep, OST (UT) 

Chairperson 

Shri Sanjay Gupta, 

CPM, WR, MoR 

Shri Sanjay Gupta, 

CPM, WR, MoR 

(Vacant due to 

resignation w.e.f. 

30.09.2024) 

Member 

Smt. Sunaina Tomar, 

IAS 

Smt. Sunaina Tomar, 

IAS 

Member 
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34. MEETINGS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, your Board of Directors 

have constituted an Audit Committee. The Audit Committee presently comprises of 

four nominee Directors of Government of India and Government of Gujarat as 

members.  

 

During the period under review, two (2) meetings of the Audit Committee were duly 

held on Thursday, 27th July, 2023 and Thursday, 28th March, 2024 respectively. There 

were no instances of any recommendations of the Audit Committee, which were not 

accepted by Board. 

 

35. MEETINGS OF THE NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 

 Pursuant to the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, your Board of Directors 

have constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee presently comprises of four nominee directors of 

Government of India and Government of Gujarat. 

 

 During the year under review there was no requirement of holding the meeting of 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC). 

 

36. COMMITTEES FORMED BY STATE GOVERNMENT: 

Following Committees have been constituted by the State Government for 

Ahmedabad- Gandhinagar Metro Rail Project: 

 

(a) Review of Project Progress by Hon’ble Chief Minister, Government of Gujarat. 

(b) High Power Committee under the Chairmanship of the Hon’ble Deputy Chief Minister, 

Government of Gujarat. (Reconstituted vide order no. Project/102011/S.F.22 /DHA 

dated 25-04-2017). 

- Smt. Avantika Singh 

Aulakh, IAS 

Member 

Corporate 
Social 
Responsibility 
(CSR) 
Committee 

Shri Jagdish Prasad 

Gupta, IAS   

Shri Jagdish Prasad 

Gupta, IAS  

 (Vacant due to 

resignation w.e.f. 

05.08.2024) 

Chairperson 

Shri Jaideep, OSD 

(UT) 

Shri Jaideep, OSD (UT) Member 

Shri S.S. Rathore Shri S.S. Rathore Member 
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(c) High Power Committee under the Chairmanship of Chief Secretary, Government of 

Gujarat (constituted pursuant to clause 6(ii) of the Project Sanction Letter dated 

17.11.2014). 

 

Review of Project Progress is done by the above committees on regular basis. 

 

37. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, with 

respect to Directors’ Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed: 

(a) That in the preparation of the annual accounts for the period ended 31st March, 2024 

he applicable accounting standards, read with the requirements set out under schedule 

III to ‘the Act’ have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material 

departures; 

(b) That the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them 

consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so 

as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the 

financial year and of the profit or loss of the company for the year; 

(c) That the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of 

adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 

2013 for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting 

fraud and other irregularities; 

(d) That the directors have prepared the accounts for the financial year ending 31st March, 

2024, on a going concern basis; 

(e)  That the directors have devised proper system to ensure compliance with the 

provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating 

effectively. 

 

38. AUDITORS: 
 

A. STATUTORY AUDITORS: 
 

Your Company being a Government Company, the Statutory Auditors are appointed 

by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India as per the provisions of Section 139(5) 

of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, M/s DGSM & Co. (FRN: No.101606W), 

Chartered Accountants, having their office at Ahmedabad (Guj.) were appointed as 

Statutory Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2023-24. The Independent 

Auditors’ Report on the accounts of the company for the financial year ended March 

31, 2024 is placed with the Board Report of the Company. 
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The C&AG report will be placed before the Annual General Meeting of the Company 

Annexure - 1. 

 
B. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR: 

 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with The 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, 

the Company has appointed M/s. Hitesh Buch & Associates, Practicing Company 

Secretaries, Ahmedabad (Mem No. F3145 & CP No. 8195) to undertake the secretarial 

audit of the Company. The Secretarial Audit Report issued by the Secretarial Auditor 

for the financial year 2023-24 is placed at Annexure - 2 of this report. 

 

C. INTERNAL AUDITOR: 
 

M/s. R.S. Patel & Co., Chartered Accountants were appointed as an Internal auditors 

of the Company for a period of 1(one) year commencing from 1st July, 2023 to 30th 

June, 2024 as approved and recommended by the Audit Committee. 

 

The scope of the internal audit and the reports of the auditors were reviewed by the 

Audit Committee from time to time. 

 
D. COST AUDITOR: 

 

Your Company is operating in a metro rail service industry and not required to maintain 

cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 

148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and accordingly such accounts and records are not 

made and maintained. 

 

39. COMPLIANCE WITH PROVISIONS OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ISSUED BY 
ICSI: 

 
The Board of Directors hereby declare that, the provisions of Secretarial Standards-1 

(“Board Meeting”) and Secretarial Standards-2 (“General Meetings”) issued by ICSI 

and notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), U/s 118(10) of the Companies 

Act, 2013, for all the Board and General Meetings of the Company held during the 

Financial Year 2023-24 have been duly complied with.  

 

40. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 
186: 
 

The Company has not given any loan/provided any guarantee or security in connection 

with a loan to any person or other body corporate and acquired by way of subscription, 
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purchase or otherwise, the securities of any other body corporate during the year under 

review. 

 

41. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED 
PARTIES: 

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered into by the Company during the 

financial year with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an 

arm's length basis. During the year under review, your Company has not entered into 

any contract/arrangement/transaction with related parties which were in conflict with 

the Company’s interest. Relevant information on related party transactions in Form 
AOC -2 is provided as Annexure - 3 to the Director’s Report. 

 

Your Directors draw attention of the members to Note-25 to the financial statement 

which sets out related party disclosures. 

 

42. ANNUAL RETURN : 

Pursuant to section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return of the Company as 

on March 31, 2024 is available on the website of the Company at 

www.gujaratmetrorail.com and the extract of Annual Return is attached herewith as 

Annexure-4. 

 

43. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

As per the requirements of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Board of 

Directors have constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee. During 

the period under review, one (1) meeting of the Corporate Social Responsibility 

Committee were duly held on 31st March, 2024. 

 

Considering the absence of operational profits during the preceding years, your 

management has not spent any amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility for 

the period under review. 

In accordance with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) 

Amendment Rules 2021, Annual Report on CSR and Sustainability activities of 

GMRCL for the financial year 2023-24 forming part of Directors Report is attached 

herewith as Annexure - 5. 

The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy of the Company is available on the 

website of the Company at www.gujaratmetrorail.com. 
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44. PUBLIC DEPOSITS: 

During the year under review, your Company has not accepted any deposits from the 

public within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

45. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN 
EXCHANGE: 

The particulars as required under section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read 

with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are as below:- 

 

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY: 

Conservation of energy is given foremost priority while planning of systems in all 

projects under implementation by GMRCL. 

 Following measures have been adopted by GMRCL for energy conservation: 

 

i. Lighting the stations and depots with LED lights to save energy. 

 

ii. Energy Efficient Rolling Stock (trains)  

 

iii. Energy Efficient Lift & Escalators 

 

iv. Implementation of SCADA for managing energy efficiency by way of maximum 

demand and power factor control. 

 

v. State of the Art energy efficient electrical equipment’s (e.g. transformers, motors, light 

fittings etc.). 

 

vi. Use of natural light for lighting the stations. 

 

B. OTHER MEASURES:  
 

i. The Company has installed the Grid connected roof top solar power plant of 200KW 

capacity at Apparel Park depot OCC building. 

 

ii. Further it is planned to augment solar power generation capacity by another 406 KW 

through installation of grid connected roof top solar power plant at Apparel Park and 

Gyaspur Depots. 

 

The Company has not undertaken any activity wherein any specific measures of 

conservation of energy, technology absorption are involved. Hence, the particulars are 
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not applicable for the period under review. However, planning of all the Projects is 

being done taking into account various aspects of energy conservation. 

 

C. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:  
 
While procuring any machineries or other technological products in GMRC, priority is 

given to use of indigenous products over imported products. Your Company follows 

the guidelines of ‘Make in India’ issued from time to time by the Department for 

Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade (DPIIT), Ministry of Commerce & Industry, 

Govt. of India.  

 

Further, emphasis is laid on purchase of project related products through the 

Governments e-Marketplace (GeM) Portal. Wherever possible, efforts are being made 

for technology absorption. 

 

D. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS OR OUTGO IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE DURING 
THE YEAR: 

The particulars relating to Foreign Exchange Earnings or Outgo in foreign exchange 

incurred during the year is as under: 

 

i) There were no foreign exchange earnings (inflows) during the year. 

ii) Expenditure in Foreign Currency (On Accrual basis). 

Particulars 2023-24 
(₹ in Lacs) 

2022-23 
(₹ in Lacs) 

(a)Technical Advisory Services 85.24 648.37 

(b) Travelling Expenses - - 

(c) Bank Charges 4.56 29.88 

(d) Loan Disbursement 186927.09 75360.89 

  TOTAL 187016.89 76039.14 

 
46. DISCLOSURES UNDER SECTION 134 (3)(l) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 

 
Except as disclosed elsewhere in this report, there have been no material changes and 

commitments which can affect the financial position of the Company between the end 

of the financial year of the Company and date of this report. 
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47. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT 
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 
(POSH Act, 2013) 

The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at the workplace and 

towards this end, has adopted a policy in line with the provisions of Sexual Harassment 

of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the 

Rules made thereunder. All employees (permanent, contractual, deputation, temporary 

and trainees) are covered under the said policy. During the financial year under review, 

the Company has not received any complaint of Sexual Harassment of Women at 

Workplace. 

 

The Company has complied with the provisions relating to the constitution of Internal 

Committee (IC) under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 to redress complaints received regarding sexual 

harassment. 

 

48. PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 
2016. 

No application has been made under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code against 

your Company; hence the requirement to disclose the details of application made or 

any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) 

during the year along with their status as at the end of the financial year is not 

applicable. 

 

49. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:  

Your Directors place on records its gratitude for the valuable co-operation, advice and 

support received from the various Ministries of Government of India especially the 

Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs, Ministry of Railways, Commissioner of Railway 

Safety and the various Ministries / Departments of Government of Gujarat including 

the Urban Development and Urban Housing Department, Finance Department etc, the 

Multi-lateral lending agencies viz. JICA, AFD & KFW and other Financial Institutions, 

Bankers, Ahmedabad Municipal Corporation, Gandhinagar Municipal Corporation and 

Surat Municipal Corporation.   

 

Your Directors wish to acknowledge their deep sense of appreciation and sincere 

thanks to all Government Agencies, Departments, Comptroller & Auditor General of 

India, Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors, Secretarial Auditors and each and every 

stakeholder for their wholehearted and continued support, guidance, advice, 

assistance and co-operation from time to time during the year and hope to receive the 

same kind of co-operation in the future as well. 
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Your Directors thank Company’s Consultants, Advisors, Contractors for their valuable 

advice and guidance and all others who are associated with the implementation of the 

Project. 

  

Your Board of Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation for the 

valuable services, advise, Co-operation and support given by Members of the Board 

during their respective tenure as Directors. 

 

Your Directors place on record their appreciation for the co-operation extended by all 

the Officers and Employees of the Company in the progress of the project and for the 

smooth conduct of the operations by the Company during the Year. 

   
      For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of  
       Gujarat Metro Rail Corporation (GMRC) Limited    
 
   
 
         Sd/-                Sd/- 
       S. S. RATHORE            AVANTIKA SINGH AULAKH, IAS  
       MANAGING DIRECTOR,GMRCL   NOMINEE DIRECTOR, GMRCL 
       DIN: 00128987        DIN: 07549438 
 
 
 
         Sd/-                 Sd/- 
      ANAND SINGH BISHT    HITESH BHAMARE 
      WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR    COMPANY SECRETARY, GMRCL 
      PROJECT & PLANNING, GMRCL   ACS: 33182 
      DIN: 10064698                                                   
          

        

 

  Sd/- 
 RAJAT VERMA 
 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER,GMRLC 

PAN: ACHPV9219R 
 

 

DATE: 27-12-2024 
PLACE: GANDHINAGAR 
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ANNEXURE-1 
 

COMMENTS OF COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER 
SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE ACOUNTS OF 
GUJARAT METRO RAIL CORPORATION(GMRC) LIMITED, GANDHINGAR FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024. 
 
 The preparation of financial statement of Gujarat Metro Rail Corporation (GMRC) 
Limited, Gandhinagar for the year ended 31st March, 2024 is in accordance with the 
financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 is the 
responsibility of the management of the Company. The statutory auditors appointed 
by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 139(5) of the Act are 
responsible for expressing opinion on these financial statement under section 143 of 
the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them 
vide their audit report dated 14th September, 2024. 
 
I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a 
supplementary audit of the financial statements of the Comptroller and Auditor General 
of India, Gandhinagar for the year ended on 31st March, 2024 under section 143(6)(a) 
of the Act. This supplementary audit has been carried out independently without 
access to the working papers of the statutory auditors and is limited primarily to 
inquiries of the statutory auditors and company personnel and a selective examination 
of some of the accounting records.  
 
On the basis of my supplementary audit nothing significant has come to my 
knowledge which would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to 
statutory auditors report under Section 143(6)(b) of the Act. 
 
                   For and on behalf of the  
      Comptroller & Auditor General of India 
 
Place: Rajkot       Sd/- 
Date: 02.12.2024       (Anubhav Kumar Singh ) 
                Accountant General (Audit-I) 
               Gujarat, Rajkot 
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ANNEXURE-3 

 

DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS/ARRANGEMENTS WITH 

RELATED PARTIES 
 

FORM NO. AOC -2 
 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 
8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the 

company with related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso 

thereto. 
 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis. 

Sr. No. Particulars Details 

a)  Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship  

 

 

 

 

 

--------Not Applicable-------- 

b)  Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction 

c)  Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction 

d)  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 

transaction including the value, if any 

e)  Justification for entering into such contracts or 

arrangements or transactions’ 

f)  Date of approval by the Board 

g)  Amount paid as advances, if any 

h)  Date on which the special resolution was passed in 

General meeting as required under first proviso to 

section 188 

 

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis. 

SL. No. Particulars Details 

a)  Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship  

 

 

--------Not Applicable------- 

b)  Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction 

c)  Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction 

d)  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 

transaction including the value, if any 

e)  Date of approval by the Board 

f)  Amount paid as advances, if any 
 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of                                                                                                                              
Gujarat Metro Rail Corporation (GMRC) Limited   
 
 

  Sd/-                 Sd/-           
       S. S. RATHORE                  AVANTIKA SINGH AULAKH, IAS  
              MANAGING DIRECTOR              NOMINEE DIRECTOR 
            DIN: 00128987                              DIN: 07549438 
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Annexure-4 
FORM NO. MGT - 9 

 
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

 
As on financial year ended on 31.03.2024 

 
Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the 

Company (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014. 
  

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS: 

 

1. CIN U60200GJ2010SGC059407 

2. Registration Date 04/02/2010 

3. Name of the Company GUJARAT METRO RAIL CORPORATION 
(GMRC) LIMITED  

4. Category/Sub-category of the 
Company 

 
METRO RAILWAY TRANSPORT SERVICES 

5. Address of the Registered 
office  & contact details 

 
BLOCK NO.1, FIRST FLOOR, KARMAYOGI 
BHAVAN, SECTOR-10-A, GANDHINAGAR- 
382010 

6. Whether listed company NO 

7. Name, Address & contact 
details of the Registrar & 
Transfer Agent, if any. 

NOT APPLICABLE 

 
II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities 

contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated) 

 

Sr. 
No. 

Name and Description of 
main products / services 

NIC Code of 
the 

Product/service 
 

%  to total turnover of the 
company 

1. Urban & Sub-Urban Metro 
Railway Transport Services 

99641112 100 

 
III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES- 

 

Sr. 

No. 

NAME AND 

ADDRESS OF 

THE COMPANY 

CIN/ 

GLN 

HOLDING/SUBSIDIARY 

/ASSOCIATE 

% of 

Shares 

Held 

Applicabl

e Section 

     1. Nil      Nil Nil Nil Nil 
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total 
Equity) 
 

(i) Category-wise Share Holding 
 

Category of 
Shareholders 

No. of Shares held at the beginning of 
the year [As on 01-April-2023] 

No. of Shares held at the end of the year [As 
on 31-March-2024] 

% 
Chan

ge 
during 

the 
year    

  Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares 

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares 
 

A. Promoter s     
 

  
  

(1) Indian     
 

  
  

a) Individual/ HUF 
- - - - - - - - - 

b) Central Govt / 
President of India 

- 
199.398 

Crore 
199.398 

Crore 
50.27% - 

257.511 
Crore 

257.511 
Crore 

50.38% 0.11% 

c) State Govt(s) - 
197.2 
Crore 

197.2 
Crore 

49.73% - 
253.62994 

Crore 
253.62994 

Crore 
49.62% 

(0.11)
% 

d) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - - 

e) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - - 

f) Any other - - - - - - - - - 

Total 

shareholding of 

Promoter (A) 
- 

396.598
Crore 

396.598 
Crore 100% - 

511.14094 
Crore 

511.14094 
Crore 

100% 
 - 

  
         

B. Public 

Shareholding 
         

1. Institutions          

a) Mutual Funds - - - - - - - - - 

b) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - - 

c) Central Govt - - - - - - - - - 

d) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - - 

e) Venture 

Capital Funds 
- - - - - - - - - 

f) Insurance 

Companies 
- - - - - - - - - 

g) FIIs - - - - - - - - - 
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 h) Foreign 

Venture Capital 

Funds 

- - - - - - - - - 

i) Others (specify) - - - - - - - - - 

Sub-total (B)(1):- 
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

           

2. Non-
Institutions          

a) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - - 

i) Indian - - - - - - - - - 

ii) Overseas - - - - - - - - - 

b) Individuals - - - - - - - - - 

i) Individual 
shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital upto 
Rs. 1 lakh 

- - - - - - - - - 

ii) Individual 
shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital in 
excess of Rs 1 
lakh 

- - - - - - - - - 

c) Others 
(specify) 

- - - - - - - - - 

Non Resident 
Indians 

- - - - - - - - - 

Overseas 
Corporate Bodies 

- - - - - - - - - 

Foreign Nationals - - - - - - - - - 

Clearing 
Members 

- - - - - - - - - 

Trusts - - - - - - - - - 

Foreign Bodies - 
D R 

- - - - - - - - - 

Sub-total (B)(2):- Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Total Public 
Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

C. Shares held 
by Custodian for 
GDRs & ADRs Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Grand Total 
(A+B+C) - 

396.598
Crore 

396.598 
Crore 100% - 

511.14094 
Crore 

511.14094 
Crore 100% - 

57



Gujarat Metro Rail Corporation (GMRC) Limited                                                       ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24                

 

 
(ii) Shareholding of Promoters- 

Sr. 
No
. N 

Shareholder’
s Name 

Shareholding at the beginning of 
the year 

Shareholding at the end of the 
year 

% 
change 

in 
shareho

lding 
during 

the year 

 

 No. of Shares % of 
total 

Shares 
of the 

compan
y 

% of 
Shares 
Pledge

d / 
encum
bered 
to total 
shares 

No. of Shares % of 
total 

Shares 
of the 

compan
y 

%of 
Shar
es 

Pledg
ed / 
encu
mber
ed to 
total 

share
s 

1 
 

Government 
of Gujarat 1,97,20,00,000 49.72 % Nil 2,53,62,99,400 49.62 %  Nil 

 
0.11% 

2 President  of 
India 1,99,39,80,000 50.28 % Nil 2,57,51,10,000 

                         
50.38 % Nil 

 
(0.11)% 

 
(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)  

Sr.No Particulars Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

No. of shares % of total 
shares of 

the 
company 

No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 

company 

I. GOVERNMENT OF 
GUJARAT 

    

 At the beginning of 
the year [2023] 197.2 Crore 49.72% 197.2 Crore 49.72% 

 Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in 
Promoters 

Shareholding during 
the year specifying the 
reasons for increase / 

decrease (e.g. 
allotment /transfer / 
bonus/ sweat equity 

etc.): 

Increase/Decrea
se in percentage 
of shareholding 
due to further 
allotment of 

equity shares 
 
 

03  Crore on  
(24/04/2023) 

 
31.4  Crore on  
(04/08/2023) 

 
22.02994 Crore 

on 
(19/01/2024) 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
   (0.94%) 

 
 

0.69% 
 
 

0.15% 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

200.2 Crore on 
(24/04/2023) 

 
231.6 Crore on 
(04/08/2023) 

 
253.62994 on  
(19/01/2024) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

48.78% 
 
 

49.47% 
 
 

49.62% 
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A At the end of the year 
[2024] 253.62994 Crore 49.62% 253.62994 Crore 49.62% 

II. PRESIDENT OF 
INDIA 

    

 At the beginning of 
the year [2023] 

199.398 Crore 50.28% 199.398 Crore 50.28% 

 Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in Promoters 
Shareholding during 
the year specifying the 
reasons for increase / 
decrease (e.g. 
allotment /transfer / 
bonus/ sweat equity 
etc.): 

Increase/Decrea
se in percentage 
of shareholding 
due to further 
allotment of 

equity shares 
 
 

10.813 Crore on  
(24/04/2023) 

 
 

26.325 Crore on  
(04/08/2023) 

 
 

20.975 Crore on 
(19/01/2024) 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

   0.94% 
 
 
 

    (0.69)% 
 
 
 

    (0.15%) 

 
 
 
 

 
     

 
 

210.211 Crore 
on 

(24/04/2023) 
 
 

236.536 Crore 
on 

(04/08/2023) 
 
 

257.511 Crore 
on 

(19/01/2024) 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

51.22% 
 
 
 

50.53% 
 
 
 

50.38% 

B At the end of the year  
[2024] 

257.511 Crore 50.38% 257.511 Crore 50.38% 

Gran
d 
Total 
(A+B) 

 511.14094 100% 511.14094 100% 

 
(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (Other than Directors, Promoter s 

and Holders of GDRs and ADRs): - Not Applicable 
 

S
N 

For Each of the Top 10 
Shareholders 

Shareholding at the 
beginning 
of the year 

Cumulative 
Shareholding during the 

Year 

No. of 
shares 

% of total 
shares of 

the 
company 

No. of 
shares 

% of total 
shares of the 

company 

 At the beginning of the year  
 

NOT APPLICABLE 
 Date wise Increase / Decrease in 

Promoters Shareholding during 
the year specifying the reasons for 
increase /decrease (e.g. allotment 
/ transfer / bonus/ sweat equity 
etc): 
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 At the end of the year 

 
(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

 

Sr. 
No. 

Shareholding of each 
Directors and each Key 
Managerial Personnel 

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

Cumulative 
Shareholding 

during the Year 

Reason 
for 

Change 
(e.g. 

allotment 
/ transfer / 

bonus/ 
sweat 
equity 
etc.): 

No. of 
shares 

% of total 
shares of 

the 
company 

No. of 
shares 

% of total 
shares of 

the 
company 

 At the beginning of the 
year 
(01/04/2023)  

     

1. Shri Manoj Joshi IAS, 

Secretary MoHUA  

[On behalf of H.E the 

President of India] 

(Transfer from Mr. Durga 

Shanker Mishra, IAS on 

behalf of Government of 

India dated 24/08/2022) 

10 0.00% 
 

10 0.00% Transfer 

2. Shri Jaideep, OSD (UT)  

[On behalf of H.E the 

President of India] 

10 0.00% 
 

10 0.00% Nil 

3. Shri Sanjeet JS&FA 
[On behalf of H.E the 

President of India] 

(Transfer from Mr. Shyam 
Sunder Dubey on behalf 
of Government of India 
dated 18/05/2023) 

10 0.00% 
 

10 0.00% Nil 

4. Shri S. S. Rathore, Retd. 
Addi. Chief Secretary 
(Roads & Building), Govt. 
of Gujarat  
 
[On behalf of Hon’ble 
Governor of Gujarat & 
Managing Director] 

20 0.00% 
 

20 0.00% Nil 

5. Shri Jaydeep Shah, IA& 
AS 
Wholetime Director & 
CFO  
(Upto 31.05.2024) 

Nil 0.00% Nil 0.00% Nil 
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6. Shri Kishore Kumar 
Director (System, 
Electrical & Rolling Stock) 
(Upto 30.06.2024) 

Nil 0.00% Nil 0.00% Nil 

7. Shri Anand Singh Bisht 
Director (Project & 
Planning) 
(w.e.f. 05.04.2023) 

Nil 0.00% Nil 0.00% Nil 

8. Shri Hitesh Bhamare – 
Company Secretary 

Nil 0.00% Nil 0.00% Nil 

 At the end of the year 
(31/03/2024) 

     

1. Shri Manoj Joshi IAS, 

Secretary MoHUA  

[On behalf of H.E the 

President of India]  

10 0.00% 
 

10 0.00% Nil 

2. Shri Jaideep, OSD (UT)  

[On behalf of H.E the 

President of India] 

 

10 0.00% 
 

10 0.00% Nil 

3. Shri Sanjeet JS&FA 
[On behalf of H.E the 

President of India] 

(Transfer from Mr. Shyam 
Sunder Dubey on behalf 
of Government of India 
dated 18/05/2023) 

10 0.00% 
 

10 0.00% Nil 

4. Shri S. S. Rathore, Retd. 
Addi. Chief Secretary 
(Roads & Building), Govt. 
of Gujarat  
[On behalf of Hon’ble 
Governor of Gujarat & 
Managing Director] 

20 0.00% 
 

20 0.00% Nil 

5. Shri Jaydeep Shah, IA& 
AS 
Wholetime Director & 
CFO 
(Upto 31.05.2024) 

Nil 0.00% Nil 0.00% Nil 

6. Shri Kishore Kumar 
Director (System, 
Electrical & Rolling Stock) 
(Upto 30.06.2024) 

Nil 0.00% Nil 0.00% Nil 

7. Shri Anand Singh Bisht 
Director (Project & 
Planning) 

Nil 0.00% Nil 0.00% Nil 

8. Shri Hitesh Bhamare – 
Company Secretary 

Nil 0.00% Nil 0.00% Nil 
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V. INDEBTEDNESS (AS PER IND AS) 

 
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for 
payment. 

Particulars 

Secured 
Loans 

Excluding 
Deposits 

Unsecured 
Loans 

Deposits 
Total 

Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the beginning of 
the financial year (GoI + GoG) 
(01/04/2023) 

    

i) Principal Amount 
 

7777.70 
crores 

Nil 
7777.70 
 crores 

ii) Interest due but not paid - - - - 

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - - 

Total (i+ii+iii) 
Nil 

7777.70 
crores 

Nil 
7777.70 
 crores 

Change in Indebtedness during the 
financial year 

  
  

    

* Addition (GoI + GoG)  1,71,231 Nil 1,71,231 

* Reduction     

Net Change  1,71,231 Nil 1,71,231 

Indebtedness at the end of the 
financial year (31/03/2024) 

    

i) Principal Amount  9,49,001 Nil 9,49,001 

ii) Interest due but not paid     

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - - 

 
Note:  

- Due to regrouping, Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year has been change. 

 

 

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL- 
 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: 

Sr. 
No
. 

Particulars of 
Remuneration 

Name of MD/WTD/ Manager  

    Shri 
S.S. Rathore 

Managing 
Director 

 
 
 
 
 

Shri Jaydeep 
Shah,  Whole 
Time Director 

Finance 
(Upto 

31.05.2024) 

Shri Anand 
Singh Bisht 
Whole Time 

Director 
(Project & 
Planning) 

Shri Kishor 
Kumar 

Whole Time 
Director 

(Systems, 
Electrical & 

Rolling 
(upto 

30.06.2024) 

Total  

1 Gross salary INR 54,58,000 INR 62,49,604 INR 59,38,917 INR 54,08,083 INR 2,30,54,604 
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(a) Salary as per 
provisions contained in 
section 17(1) of the 
Income-tax Act, 1961 

 

    

(b) Value of perquisites 
u/s 17(2) Income-tax 
Act, 1961 

Nil Nil Nil Nil  

(c) Profits in lieu of 
salary under section 
17(3) Income- tax Act, 
1961 

Nil Nil Nil Nil  

2 Stock Option  Nil Nil Nil Nil  

3 Sweat Equity Nil Nil Nil Nil  

4 Commission 
-as % of profit 
-  others, specify… 
  

Nil Nil 

 
Nil 

 
Nil 

 

5 Others, please specify 
  

Nil Nil 
Nil Nil  

  Total (A) 
  
  

INR 54,58,000 
INR 62,49,604 INR 59,38,917 INR 54,08,083 INR 2,30,54,604 

Ceiling as per the Act NOT APPLICABLE  
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B. Remuneration to other directors 
 

 
*The Sitting fees payable to the Non-Executive Directors (Nominee Directors appointed by the Government of Gujarat) has been paid in the Account of Bureau of Public 
Enterprises, Government of Gujarat. As per the decision of the Board of Directors, vide their resolution dated 19/01/2017 and in pursuance to Resolution No. 
FD/0637/04/2024, Dated 15/06/2024 of Finance Department, Government of Gujarat. 
**As per the notification dated 5th June, 2015 of Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to 

Government Companies. In view of the same, the overall ceiling of managerial remuneration is not applicable to Gujarat Metro Rail book@staybloom.com Corporation 

(GMRC) Limited. 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars of 
Remuneration 

  

 Name of Directors 

Shri Manoj 
Joshi, IAS 

 
(Upto 

16.03.2024) 

Shri 
Jaideep, 
OSD, UT 

Shri 
Sanjeet 
JS & FA 

Shri Sanjay 
Gupta, CPM-

ADI, WR, 
MoR 

 
(Upto 

30.09.2024) 

Shri 
Archunan 

T.  Director 
(Project), 

CMRL 

Shri 
Jagdish 
Prasad 

Gupta, IAS 
 

(Upto 
05.08.2024) 

 
 
 

Smt. 
Sunaina 
Tomar, 

IAS 

Smt. 
Avantika 

Singh 
Aulakh, 

IAS 
 

(w.e.f.15.06.
2023) 

Shri 
Ashwini 
Kumar, 

IAS 
 

(w.e.f. 
04.08.2023) 

Total 
Amount        

(₹) 

1 Independent Directors 
- - - - - 

 
- 

- - - - 

Fee for attending 
board committee 
meetings 

- - - - - - - - - - 

Commission - - - - - - - - - - 

Others, please specify - - - - - - - - - - 
Total (1) - - - - - - - - - - 

2 Other Non-Executive 
Directors 

- - - - - - - - - - 

*Fee for attending 
board/ committee 
meetings 

     N.A. 
 
    N.A.   N.A. ₹21,600 ₹21,600 ₹ 41,000 ₹ 35,000 ₹15,000 ₹5,000 ₹1,39,200 

Commission - - - - - - - - - - 

Others, please specify - - - - - - - - - - 

  Total (2) - - -        

  Total (B)=(1+2) - - -        

  

Total Managerial 
Remuneration 

- - - ₹21,600 ₹21,600 ₹ 41,000 ₹ 35,000 ₹15,000 ₹5,000 ₹1,39,200 

  

**Overall Ceiling as 
per the Act 

N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A. 
N.A. 
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C. Remuneration to key managerial personnel other than MD/MANAGER/WTD 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars of 
Remuneration 

  Key Managerial Personnel  

  Shri Jaydeep 
Shah 

(WTD,Finance & 
CFO)  

Shri Hitesh 
Bhamare  
Company 
Secretary 

Total 
(Amount in 

Rs.) 

1 Gross salary INR 62,49,604 INR 23,61,032 INR 86,10,636 

(a) Salary as per 
provisions contained in 
section 17(1) of the 
Income-tax Act, 1961 

INR 62,49,604 INR 23,61,032  

(b) Value of perquisites 
u/s 17(2) Income-tax 
Act, 1961 

Nil Nil Nil 

(c) Profits in lieu of 
salary under section 
17(3) Income-tax Act, 
1961 

Nil Nil Nil 

2 Stock Option Nil Nil Nil 

3 Sweat Equity Nil Nil Nil 

4 Commission Nil Nil Nil 

  -  as % of profit Nil Nil Nil 

  others, specify… Nil Nil Nil 

5 Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil 

  Total INR 62,49,604 INR 23,61,032 INR 86,10,636 

 
VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: 

Type Section of 
the 

Companies 
Act 

Brief 
Description 

Details of 
Penalty / 

Punishment/ 
Compounding 
fees imposed 

Authority 
[RD / NCLT/ 

COURT] 

Appeal 
made, 
if any 
(give 

Details) 

A. COMPANY 

Penalty - - - - - 

Punishment - - - - - 

Compounding - - - - - 

B. DIRECTORS 

Penalty - - - - - 

Punishment - - - - - 

Compounding - - - - - 

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT 
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Penalty - - - - - 

Punishment - - - - - 

Compounding - - - - - 

 
 

      For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of  

      Gujarat Metro Rail Corporation (GMRC) Limited    

 

 

   

               Sd/-         Sd/- 

       S. S. RATHORE            AVANTIKA SINGH AULAKH, IAS 

       MANAGING DIRECTOR    NOMINEE DIRECTOR 

       DIN: 00128987        DIN: 07549438 

 

 

 

         Sd/-                 Sd/- 

      ANAND SINGH BISHT    HITESH BHAMARE 

      WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR    COMPANY SECRETARY 

      PROJECT & PLANNING    ACS: 33182 

      DIN: 10064698                                                   

          

 

 

  Sd/- 

 RAJAT VERMA 

 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

PAN: ACHPV9219R 

 

 

DATE: 27-12-2024 

PLACE: GANDHINAGAR 

 

66



Gujarat Metro Rail Corporation (GMRC) Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024                 

 

ANNEXURE-5 
 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR 2023-2024 

 

1) Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company. 
 
GMRCL has formulated a CSR Policy which shall at all times endeavor for 
upliftment and betterment of the neglected and underprivileged sections of the 
society by identifying and fulfilling the underserved needs in the local vicinity where 
it operates, by following means:   

 

 To take up programmes that benefit the communities and enhancing the quality 

of life & socio-economic wellbeing of the people. 

 

 To aim at supplementing the role of Government in enhancing welfare 

measures of the society based on the immediate and long term social and 

environmental consequences of the activities. 

 

 Contributing to sustainable development in areas of strategic interest through 

initiatives designed in a manner that addresses the challenges faced by the 

Society. 

 

 Collaborating with community, institutions (Government / Non-Government) for 

achieving fulfillment of the above objectives.  

 
2) Composition of Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) Committee: 

 

 Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director Designation / Nature of 
Directorship 

Number of 
Meetings of 

CSR 
Committee 
held during 

the year 

Number of 
Meetings of 

CSR 
Committee 
attended 

during the 
year 

1. Shri Jagdish Prasad 
Gupta, IAS 

Chairman 

(Nominee Director, 
GoG) 

1 1 

2. Shri Jaideep, OSD, 
(UT) 

Member 

(Nominee Director, GoI) 

1 1 

3. Shri S.S. Rathore Member 

(Managing Director, 
GMRCL) 

1 1 
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3) Provide the web-link(s) where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy 
and CSR Projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the 
company. 
 

CSR Committee: The composition of the CSR Committee is available on our 

https://www.gujaratmetrorail.com 

 

CSR Policy: The CSR Policy of the Company is available on our website, at 

https://www.gujaratmetrorail.com  

 

CSR Budget: Considering negative average net profits of the company during 

preceding three financial years i.e. (₹ -21,258.23 Lakh) (F.Y. 2020-21, 2021-2022 

and 2022-2023 ), the statutory obligation for earmarking funds for CSR activities 

does not arise for F.Y. 2023-24. 
 

4) Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact 
Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 
8, if applicable:  
 

           -----------------------Not Applicable for Financial Year 2023-24--------------------- 

 

5)                                                                                                                           (₹ in Lakhs)       

(a) Average net profit of the Company as per sub-section (5) of 
section 135:    

₹(21,258.23) 
Lakh 

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per sub-
section (5) of section 135: 

NIL 

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or  
programmes or activities of the previous Financial Years: 

NIL 

(d) Amount required to be set off for the Financial Year, if any: NIL 

(e) Total CSR obligation for the Financial Year [(b)+(c)-(d)]: NIL 

 
6)  

(a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and 
other than Ongoing Project):    

NIL 

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL 

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NIL 

(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(C)] NIL 

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year: NIL 

Amount Unspent (in ₹) 
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Total 
Amount 
Spent 
for the 

Financial 
Year  
(in ₹) 

Total Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR Account as per 
sub-section (6) of section 135. 

Amount Transferred to any fund specified 
under Schedule VII as per second proviso 

to sub-section (5) of section 135. 

Amount Date of 
Transfer 

Name of 
the Fund 

Amount Date of Transfer 

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 

(f)                      Excess amount for set-off, if any:  

Sl. No.  Particular Amount (in ₹) 

(1) (2) (3) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per sub-
section (5) of section 135 

NIL 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year NIL 

(iii) Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i) NIL 

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or 
activities of the previous Financial Years, if any 

NIL 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years [(iii)-
(iv)] 

NIL 

 
7) Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three 

Financial Years: 
 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

Sl 
No. 

Preceding 
Financial 
Year(s) 

Amount 
transferred 
to Unspent 

CSR 
Account 

under sub-
section (6) 
of section 
135 (in ₹) 

Balance 
Amount 

in 
Unspent 

CSR 
Account 

under 
sub-

section 
(6) of 

section 
135  

(in ₹) 

Amount 
Spent in 

the 
Financial 

Year  
(in ₹) 

Amount 
transferred to a 
Fund specified 
under schedule 

VII as per second 
proviso to sub-
section (5) of 

section 135, if any 

Amount 
remaining 

to be spent 
in 

succeeding 
Financial 

Years (in ₹) 

Deficiency, 
if any 

Amount 
(in ₹) 

Date of 
Transfer 

1 2022-23 - - - - - - - 

2 2021-22 - - - - - - - 

3 2020-21 - - - - - - - 
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8) Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social 

Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: 
 

Yes   No 
 

If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired:  NIL 

 
Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate 
Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: 

 

Sl. 
No. 

Short 
particulars of 

the property or 
asset(s) 

 
[including 
complete 

address and 
location of the 

property] 

Pincode 
of the 

property 
or 

assets(s) 

Date of 
creation 

Amount of 
CSR amount 

spent 

Details of entity/ Authority/ beneficiary 
of the registered owner 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) 

CSR 
Registration 
Number, if 
applicable 

Name Registered 
Address 

- - - - - - - - 

 
(All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, house no, Municipal 
office/Municipal Corporation/ Gram Panchayat are to be specified and also the area of the immovable property 
as well as boundaries) 

 

9) Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two percent of the average net profit 
as per sub-section (5) of section 135. 

 

               ------------------------------Not Applicable for F.Y. 2023-24------------------------- 

 

 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Gujarat Metro Rail Corporation (GMRC) Limited  
 
 
 
          Sd/- 
S.S. RATHORE 
MANAGING DIRECTOR 
DIN: 00128987 

 

           
 
                                           

 
 
 
                   Sd/- 
AVANTIKA SINGH AULAKH, IAS 
NOMINEE DIRECTOR 
DIN:  07549438 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 

To 

The Members of 

Gujarat Metro Rail Corporation Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Gujarat Metro Rail 

Corporation Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, 

the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement 

of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and 

notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies 

and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “The Ind AS financial 

statements”). 

 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 

us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies 

Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity 

with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting 

Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, of the state of affairs (financial position) of 

the Company as at March 31, 2024 and its profit (financial performance including other 

comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that 

date. 

 
Basis for Opinion 

 
We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards 

on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under 

those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 

the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 

Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 

audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 

thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 

requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS 

financial statements. 

 
Information Other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. 

The other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion 

and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, but does not include 

the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Board’s Report is 

expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report. 

 
Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we 

do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
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In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course 
of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

 
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement 

of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 

regard. 

 
When we read the Final Annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement 

therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and 

take necessary actions as per applicable laws and regulations. 

 
Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the Ind AS 

Financial Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of 

the Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true 

and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, 

changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting 

principles generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 

specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standards) Rules 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of 

adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 

the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 

selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance 

of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 

presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 

to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 

intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 

to do so. 

 
The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 
process. 

 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 

and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 

level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 

will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 

or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 

be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind 

AS financial statements. 
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 

responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 

to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 

resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 

internal control. 

 

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to 

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 

143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether 

the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the 

operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis 

of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 

the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the 

related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 

obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. And we have placed reliance on 

resolution plan submitted by company to its bankers. However, future events or 

conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial 

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements 

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 

presentation. 

 
Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements that, individually 

or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 

knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative 

materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating 

the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the 

financial statements. 

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 

with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them 

all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current 

period.  
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We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public  

disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 

matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of 

doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 

communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 

1) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best 

of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and 

the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with 

the relevant books of account. 

 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified 

under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 

2014. 

 

e) As the company is a Government Company, in terms of notification no. G.S.R. 463(E) 

dated 5th June 2015 (as amended), issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the 

sub- section (2) of section 164 is not applicable to the company. 

 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 

of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 

Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the 

adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls 

over financial reporting. 

 

g) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company by virtue of the provisions of notification no. G.S.R. 463 (E) dated 5 June, 2015 

(as amended) of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, is exempt from 

the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. 

 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 

with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our 

opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 

us: 
 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its 

financial position in its Financial Statements – Refer Note 21 to the Financial 

Statements; 

 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 

contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

 

iii. There were no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

 

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, 

no funds (which are material either individually or aggregate) have been advanced 

or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 

sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), 

including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether 

recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or  
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indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 

whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide 

any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

 
(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, 

no funds (which are material either individually or aggregate) have been received 

by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 

("Funding Parties"), with the understanding whether recorded in writing or 

otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in 

other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 

the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or 

the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 

 

(c) Based on such audit procedures that the auditor has considered reasonable 

and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to the notice that has 

caused them to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) 

contain any material misstatement. 

 

                    v.    The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year. 

 

i) Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting 

software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail 

(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant 

transactions recorded in the software.  

 

Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail 

feature being tampered with in respect of the accounting software. 

 

2) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the 

Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a 

statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

 

3) In terms of section 143 (5) of the Act, we give in “Annexure C” a statement on the 

directions and sub directions issued under the aforesaid section by the Comptroller and 

Auditor General of India. 

 

For DGSM & Co 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 101606W 

 
 

 
Place: Ahmedabad                Sd/- 

Date: 14/09/2024 CA Devesh C Shah 

 (Partner) 

UDIN: 24036830BKARUT8301 M. No.: 036830 
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      ANNEXURE “A” 
      

TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 

section of our Independent Auditor’s Report, of even date, to the members of Gujarat Metro 

Rail Corporation Limited on Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 

2024) 

 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) 

of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Gujarat Metro 

Rail Corporation Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our 

audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

 
The Company Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 

controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 

of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 

the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s 

policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, 

the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 

reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial 

reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 

the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 

“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the 

Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the 

extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance 

Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 

financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively 

in all material respects. 

 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 

the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 

effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 

obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 

the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 

effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 

depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 

misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over 

financial reporting. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

 
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 

preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting 

includes those policies and procedures that 

 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 

reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 

accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and 

 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on 

the financial statements. 

 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 

evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 

subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 

policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 

 
Opinion 
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, further 

described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities section of this report, limited documentation 

for identification of risk description with control categories of its process, we have considered 

other related documents available in this regards, for obtaining sufficient understanding for 

its process and controls and based on the above the Company has in all material respects, an 

adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial 

controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on 

the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 

essential components of Internal Controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 

of India. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

78



   Gujarat Metro Rail Corporation (GMRC) Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24                 

 

For DGSM & Co. Chartered 

Accountants  

FRN: 101606W 

 
 
 

             Sd/- 
Place: Ahmedabad          CA Devesh C Shah  

Date: 14/09/2024 (Partner) 

UDIN: 24036830BKARUT8301 M. No.:036830 
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ANNEXURE ‘B’   

TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 

section of our Independent Auditor’s Report, of even date, to the Members of Gujarat Metro 

Rail Corporation Limited on Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024) 

 

i.   In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets: -  

 
a. (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 

quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment; 

 
(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of 

intangible assets; 

b. The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the 

management during the year, which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the 

size & nature of the company. According to the information and explanations given to 

us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

c. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined 

by us and based on the examination of registered sales deed/transfer deed provided 

to us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land 

and buildings are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date 

except in respect of following cases: 

 
Description of item 

of property 

Gross 

Carrying 

Value 

Title 

deed held 

in the 

name of 

Whether title 

deed holder is a 

promoter, 

director or 

relative of 

promoter/ 

director or 

employee of 

promoter/ 

director 

Property 

held 

since 

which 

date 

Reason for 

not being in 

the name of 

the company 

Freehold Land 

- Survey No 525, 

Kathvada, Vastral, 

Ahmedabad 

(Admeasuring 

18,000 sq. mtr.) 

16,82,50,000 Government 

of Gujarat 

Yes 31-03-2015 Administrative 

process for 

transfer of title is 

underway 

Freehold Land 

- Plot No 56 and 285, 

Ahmedabad 
Apparel, (Park  SEZ 

admeasuring 

17.62 hectares) 

- GIDC 

(Gujarat 

Industrial 

Development 

Corporation) 

Yes Year 2015 Further action 

awaited from 

State 

Government 
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d. The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including 

Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. 

 
e. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there 

are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the company for holding 

any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 

(45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 

 

ii. a. As informed to us, the company does not hold any inventory during the year. 

Accordingly, reporting under clause (ii) (a) of the order is not applicable. 

 
b. According to the information and explanations given to us, at any point of time 

of the year, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital facility 

from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets, 

and hence reporting under clause (ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

iii. According to the information and explanation given to us, during the year the 

Company has granted unsecured loans to related entity GSFS (Gujarat State 

Financial Services Limited) in form of investment in its Inter Corporate Deposits and 

Liquid Deposits. Such investment is made in accordance with Government of Gujarat 

directions vide its GR No: STS-10200-4048-A Dated 29.11.2000 wherein surplus funds 

available with the company are temporarily invested until the actual utilization towards 

project for which such funds are received is determined. 

 
a. A. Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information 

and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans to 

subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates. 

 
B. Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information 

and explanations given to us, the Company has granted loans to other than 

subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates as below: 

 

Particulars (Unsecured Loans to GSFS) Amount (₹ in Lakhs) 

Aggregate amount granted during the year 23,68,482.44 

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date 73,581.35 
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b. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the 

audit procedures conducted by us, we are of the opinion that the terms and 

conditions of the loans given are not prejudicial to the interest of the Company. 

 
c. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 

our examination of the records of the Company, the loans given are in form of 

investment in Inter Corporate Deposit and Liquid Deposits to GSFS which 

have stipulated repayment period of principal and interest. Further, repayment 

on maturity of such loans is regular during the year. 

 
d. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 

our examination of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount 

for more than ninety days in respect of loans given. 

 
e. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 

our examination of the records of the Company, there is no loan given falling 

due during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans given 

to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same party. 

 
f. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 

our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any 

loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period 

of repayment. 

iii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during 

the current financial year, the company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 

and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and investments made. 

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits 

and hence the provisions of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the 

Companies Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, with 

regard to the deposits accepted are not applicable to the Company. Therefore, the 

provisions of clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the 

company. 

v. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government 

has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 for the products manufactured by it (and/or services provided 

by it). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable. 

vi. In respect of statutory dues: 

a. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to us, 

the company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including 

provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, goods and services tax, 

cess, duty of customs and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the 

appropriate authorities. There are no such arrears as at 31st March, 2024 for a 

period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

b. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there 

are no statutory dues referred to in clause (a) above that have not been deposited as 

on 31st March, 2024 on account of any dispute, except in following cases: 
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Name of 

Statute 

Nature of 

dues 

Amount 

excluding 

Interest 

(₹ in 

Lakhs) 

Period to 

which amount 

relates 

Forum where the 

dispute is pending 

Income Tax Act, 

1961 

Income Tax 59.14 FY 2013-14 Commissioner of 

Income (Appeals) 

Income Tax    Act, 

1961 

Income Tax 225.29 FY 2017-18 Commissioner of 

Income Tax 

(Appeals) 

Gujarat Value 

Added Tax   Act, 

2003 

Value Added Tax 

(VAT) 

885.85 FY 2012-13 Deputy 

Commissioner of 

Commercial Tax

 Appeals 

(Gandhinagar) 

Gujarat Value 

Added Tax  Act, 

2003 

Value Added Tax 

(VAT) 

55.35 FY 2013-14 Deputy 

Commissioner of 

Commercial Tax

 Appeals 

(Gandhinagar) 

Total  1225.63   

 

vii. According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no 

transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or 

disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 during 

the year. 

 

viii. a.   As per the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not defaulted 

in repayment of loans or borrowings to banks and financial institutions during the 

year. 

b. The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial 

institution or government or any government authority. 

 

c. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 

the terms loans obtained by the company were applied for the purposes for 

which the loans were obtained. 

 

d. According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall 

examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that no 

funds raised on short term basis by the company. Accordingly, reporting under 

clause 3(ix)(d) of the order is not applicable. 

 

e. According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall 

examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that the 

company has not taken funds from any entity or person on account of or to 

meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures as defined 

under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of 

the order is not applicable. 
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f. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 

during the year the company has not raised loans on the pledge of securities 

heldin its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies as defined under 

Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the order is 

not applicable. 

 

x. a. The Company has not raised any monies by way of initial public offer or further 

public offer (including debt instruments) or term loans. Therefore, reporting under 

paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

 
 

b. According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any 

preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly 

convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 

3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

 
 

xi. a. Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according 

to the information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of 

materiality outlined in Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the 

Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course 

of the audit. 

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under 

sub- section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed 

by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies 

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. 

 

c. To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and 

explanations given to us, Section 177(9) of Companies Act, 2013 is not 

applicable to company and as per representation received from management 

there are no whistle-blower complaints received during the year. Therefore, 

reporting under paragraph 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

xii. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a 

Nidhi Company. Therefore, reporting under paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not 

applicable. 

 
 

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us, based on our examination 

of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance 

with sections 177 of the Companies Act and Company being a government 

company, transactions with other government companies are exempt for the 

compliance of Section 188 of the Companies Act, in terms of notification no. G.S.R 

463(E) dated 5th June, 2015 (as amended), issued by the Ministry of Corporate 

Affairs. Details of such transactions have been disclosed in Note 25 of the financial 

statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standard. 
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xiv. a. Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit 

procedures, in our opinion, the Company has an adequate internal audit 

system commensurate with the size and the nature of its business. 

b. We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the Company during 

the year and covering the period up to 31 March 2024 for the period under 

audit. 
 

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-

cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, 

paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

xvi. a. The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the 

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is 

not applicable. 

b. The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the 

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is 

not applicable. 

c. The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the 

regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) 

of the Order is not applicable. 

d. According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of 

audit, the Group does not have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of 

clause 3(xvi)(d) are not applicable. 

 

xvii. The Company has incurred cash loss amounting to ₹ 7,122.18 Lakhs during the financial 

year covered by our audit and incurred cash loss amounting to ₹ 7,144.73 Lakhs 

during the immediately preceding financial year. The cash loss reported is computed 

in accordance with Paragraph 80 of Guidance Note on The Companies (Auditor’s 

Report) Order, 2020 as issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

(ICAI). 

 

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the 

year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the order is not applicable. 
 

xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the 

financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and 

payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements 

and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on 

our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to 

our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on 

the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its 

liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period 

of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an 

assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our 

reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give 

any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one 

year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when 

they fall due. 
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xx. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not 

required  to spend for CSR as per 135(5) of companies Act, 2013 Hence, reporting 

under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable. 

 
For DGSM & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

 FRN: 101606W 

 
 

Place: Ahmedabad                                                                        Sd/- 

Date: 14/09/2024 CA Devesh C Shah 

 (Partner) 

UDIN: 24036830BKARUT8301 M. No.: 036830 
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ANNEXURE “C”   

TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 

(Referred to in paragraph 3 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 

section of our Independent Auditor’s Report, of even date, to the Members of Gujarat Metro 

Rail Corporation Limited on Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 

2024) 

 

 

 
Sr. 

No. 

 

Directions / Sub-Directions Issued by 

Comptroller and Auditor General of 

India 

Responses to the Directions / Sub- 

directions based on the information 

and explanation given to us and based 

on examination of records of the 

company: 

1. Whether company has system in place to 

process all the accounting transactions 

through the IT system? If yes, the 

implications of processing the 

accounting transactions outside IT 

system on the integrity of the accounts 

along with financial implications, if any, 

may be stated. 

Company has system in place to process 

all the accounting transactions through 

IT system. As per the information and 

explanation received, accounting 

transactions are not processed outside 

the IT system. 

2. Whether there is any restructuring of 

existing loan or cases of waiver/write off of 

debts/loans/interest etc. made by a lender 

to the company due to company’s 

inability to repay the loan? If yes, the 

financial impact may be stated. Whether 

such cases are properly accounted for? 

(In case, lender is a Government 

Company, then this direction is also 

applicable for statutory auditor of lender 

company) 

There is no restructuring of any loan or 

cases of waiver/write off of 

debts/loans/interest etc. made by a lender 

to company. 

3. Whether funds received / receivable or 

specific schemes from central / state 

agencies were properly accounted for / 

utilised as per its term and conditions? 

List the case of deviations. 

The funds received from Government of 

India and Government of Gujarat were 

properly accounted for / utilised as per 

the terms and conditions. 

4. Whether the company has taken 

adequate measures to prevent 

encroachment of idle land owned by it. 

Whether any land of company is 

encroached, under litigation, 

As per the information and explanation 

given to us, the company has taken 

adequate measures to prevent 

encroachment of idle land owned by 

it. 

Further, there is no land of the company
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 not put to use or declared surplus? 

Details may be provided. 

which is encroached, under litigation or 

declared surplus. One land situated at 

survey no. 15 at Motera, Ahmedabad 

admeasuring 140,016 square meters is 

not used currently by the company. 

5. Whether the system in vogue for 

identification of projects to be taken up 

under Public Private Partnership is in line 

with guidelines/policies of the 

government? Comment on deviation, if 

any. 

The Company has not undertaken any 

projects under Public Private 

Partnerships and therefore this direction is 

not applicable to the company. 

6. Whether system for monitoring the 

execution of works vis-à-vis the milestones 

stipulated in agreement is in existence 

and the impact of cost escalation if any, 

revenue/loses from contracts, etc. have 

been properly accounted for in the books. 

The system of monitoring the execution 

of works vis-à-vis the milestones stipulated 

in the agreement is in existence and the 

impact of cost escalation, if any, 

revenues/losses from contracts, etc., 

have been properly accounted for in the 

books. 

7. Whether fund received / receivable for 

specific schemes from central/ State 

were properly accounted for/utilized? 

List the cases of deviations. 

The funds received from Central and 

State has been properly accounted and 

no deviations are observed during the 

period under audit. 

8. Whether the bank guarantees have 

been revalidated in time? 

The bank guarantees have been 

revalidated on time by the Company. 

9. Comment on the confirmation of 

balances of trade receivables, trade 

payables, term deposits, bank accounts 

and cash obtained. 

The Company has a policy and 

procedure for obtaining confirmation of 

year end accounts balances of trade 

payables, term deposits, advance given 

to suppliers / contractors and bank 

accounts. In our opinion and considering 

the size and nature of business of the 

Company, the extent of confirmations 

called for and its responses received by 

the company are sufficient. 

10. The cost incurred on abandoned projects 

may be quantified and the amount 

actually written-off shall be mentioned. 

There are no abandoned projects by 

the company. 

11. Are there any established norms for 

processing of tariff fixation? The cases of 

under recovery of cost shall be 

highlighted. 

As per the explanation given to us, the 

company has established norms for 

fixation of tariff. The present fare 

structure is approved by the Board of 

Directors of the Company in 

February,2019 in accordance with 

section 33 of the Metro Railways 

(Operation & Maintenance) Act, 2002 on 

the basis of detailed study report of 

CEPT University (Centre of Excellence 

for Urban Transport) and 

recommendation of Internal Fare 

Fixation Committee of GMRCL, prior to 
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commencement of operations of 

Ahmedabad Metro Rail Project Phase-I. 

12. Does the company have a set of 

operational norms? Has the management 

measured its performance against the 

norms and taken suitable action in case 

of deviation? 

Operation and Maintenance Manual has 

been reviewed and approved by the 

Committee of Directors. As per the 

information and explanation provided to us 

the management has set up the process 

to monitor the measurement of 

performance against the processes 

defined in Operations and Maintenance 

manual. We have not been informed of 

any such deviations from the 

management. 

13. The system of monitoring the recovery of 

lease rent obtained from contractors for 

operation and Maintenance (O&M) of 

bus stands shall be examined and the 

non- recoveries may be quantified. 

As per the information and explanation 

given to us, there are no bus stands 

owned by the company and therefore this 

direction is not applicable. However, 

lease rent for other movable and 

immovable properties given on rent to 

contractors have been recovered as per 

lease agreement. 

14. Cases of diversion and surrender of 

unutilized funds received from Central 

and State Government or its agencies 

under different schemes be reported. 

The company has utilized funds received 

from Central and State Government for 

the purpose for which it was received. 

The unutilized surplus funds, if any, are 

temporary invested in banks and 

financial 

institutions as per policy of the Company. 

15. Details of works completed during the 

year and delay in ongoing works, if any, 

may be reported. 

Ahmedabad Metro Rail Project Phase-I 

comprises of 40.03 KMS. Out of that 6.5 

kms operational since FY 2018-19 and 

32.1 kms operational since FY 2022-23. 

Remaining work of Ahmedabad Metro 

Phase-I planned to be completed by 

December-2024.  

 

 
For DGSM & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 101606W 
 
          Sd/- 

Place: Ahmedabad         CA Devesh C Shah 
Date: 14/09/2024 (Partner) 
UDIN: 24036830BKARUT8301   M. No.:036830 
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
( ₹ Lakhs )

Particulars Note  2023-24  2022-23 

Income

Revenue from operations 13 3,796.47                    1,174.38              

Other income 14 83,471.71                  13,692.85            

Total income 87,268.18                  14,867.23            

Expenses

Operating expenses 15 16,983.08                  8,088.38              

    Employee benefits expenseEmployee benefits expense 16 4,716.15                    3,489.25              

Finance costs 17 7,556.81                    13,466.73            

    Depreciation and amortisation expensesDepreciation and amortisation 18 31,175.95                  18,222.63            

Other expenses 19 2,942.67                    3,677.43              

Total expenses 63,374.66                  46,944.42            

Profit/ (Loss) before exceptional items and tax 23,893.52                  (32,077.19)           

Exceptional item -                            -                       

Profit/ (Loss) before tax 23,893.52                  (32,077.19)           

Tax expense

Earlier year tax 20 -                            7.92                     

Total tax expense -                            7.92                     

Profit/ (Loss) for the year 23,893.52                  (32,085.11)           

Other comprehensive income

a) Items that will not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years

Re-measurement gains / (loss)  on defined benefit plans                         (63.68)                   (32.21)

b) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years -                            -                       

(63.68)                       (32.21)                  

Total comprehensive income for the year 23,829.84                  (32,117.32)           

Earning/(loss) Per Equity Share

Basic earnings per equity share of  ₹ 10 24 0.52                           (0.87)                    

Diluted earnings per equity share of  ₹ 10 24 0.47                           (0.87)                    

The accompanying Notes 1-42  form an integral part of the Financial Statements 

As per our report of even date attached

For, D G S M & Co. For and on behalf of the board of directors of 

Chartered Accountants Gujarat Metro Rail corporation ( GMRC ) Limited

ICAI Firm Registration No. 101606W

Sd/- Sd/-

CA Devesh C. Shah S.S.Rathore Ashwinikumar Yadav

Partner Managing Director Director

M.No. 036830 DIN:00128987 DIN: 06581753

Sd/- Sd/-

Anand Singh Bisht Hiteshkumar Bhamare

Director (Project & Planning) Company Secretary

DIN: 10064698 ACS: 33182

Place : Ahmedabad Place : Gandhinagar

Date  : 14/09/2024 Date  : 10/09/2024

Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Sd/-
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

A. Equity share capital ( ₹ Lakhs )

 Particulars  No of Shares Amount

Balance As at April 1, 2022 3,22,65,70,000                       3,22,657.00                               

Changes in Equity Share capital due to prior period errors -                                         -                                            

Restated Balance as at April 1, 2022 3,22,65,70,000                       3,22,657.00                               

Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year 73,94,10,000                          73,941.00                                  

Balance As at March 31, 2023 3,96,59,80,000                       3,96,598.00                               

Changes in Equity Share capital due to prior period errors -                                         -                                            

Restated Balance as at April 1, 2023 3,96,59,80,000                       3,96,598.00                               

Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year 1,14,54,29,400                       1,14,542.94                               

Balance As at March 31, 2024 5,11,14,09,400                       5,11,140.94                               

B. Instrument entirely equity in nature ( Refer Note 7 ) ( ₹ Lakhs )

 Particulars 

Balance As at April 1, 2022 46,700.00                                  

Changes in Instrument entirely equity in nature due to prior period errors -                                            

Restated Balance as at April 1, 2022 46,700.00                                  

Changes in Instrument entirely equity in nature during the year -                                            

Balance As at March 31, 2023 46,700.00                                  

Changes in Instrument entirely equity in nature due to prior period errors -                                            

Restated Balance as at April 1, 2023 46,700.00                                  

Changes in Instrument entirely equity in nature during the year -                                            

Balance As at March 31, 2024 46,700.00                                  

C. Other Equity ( ₹ Lakhs )

 Particulars 

Reserves and Surplus (A)

Retained Earnings*

Balance as at April 1, 2022 (17,824.33)                                

Changes in accounting policy/ prior period errors -                                            

Restated Balance as at April 1, 2022 (17,824.33)                                

     Profit/(Loss) for the Year (32,085.11)                                

     Other comprehensive income for the year (Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plan) (32.21)                                       

Total Comprehensive income for the year (32,117.32)                                

Balance as at March 31, 2023 (A) (49,941.65)                                

Share Application Money Pending Allottment (B) 13,813.00                                  

Total Other equity as at March 31, 2023 (A+B) (36,128.65)                                

Reserves and Surplus (A)

Retained Earnings*

Balance as at April 1, 2023 (49,941.65)                                

Changes in accounting policy/ prior period errors -                                            

Restated Balance as at April 1, 2023 (49,941.65)                                

     Profit/(Loss) for the Year 23,893.52                                  

     Other comprehensive income for the year (Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plan) (63.68)                                       

Total Comprehensive income for the year 23,829.84                                  

Balance as at March 31, 2024 (A) (26,111.81)                                

Share Application Money Pending Allottment (B) 9,354.06                                    

Total Other equity as at March 31, 2024 (A+B) (16,757.75)                                

*Retained Earnings represents undistributed accumulated earnings of the Company as on the balance sheet date.

The accompanying Notes 1-42  form an integral part of the Financial Statements 

As per our report of even date attached

For, D G S M & Co. For and on behalf of the board of directors of 

Chartered Accountants Gujarat Metro Rail corporation ( GMRC ) Limited

ICAI Firm Registration No. 101606W

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

CA Devesh C. Shah S.S.Rathore Ashwinikumar Yadav

Partner Managing Director Director

M.No. 036830 DIN:00128987 DIN: 06581753

Sd/- Sd/-

Anand Singh Bisht Hiteshkumar Bhamare

Director (Project & Planning) Company Secretary

DIN: 10064698 ACS: 33182

Place : Ahmedabad Place : Gandhinagar

Date  : 14/09/2024 Date  : 10/09/2024

Amount

 Amount 
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( ₹ Lakhs )

2023-24 2022-23

(A) Cash Flow From Operating Activities

Net Profit/ (Loss) before Tax 23,893.52                              (32,077.19)                             

Adjustments For:

Add/(Less)  Interest Income (10,447.28)                             (6,256.29)                               

Add/(Less)  Grant Income (14,199.21)                             (7,285.11)                               

Add/(Less)  Finance Cost 7,556.81                                13,466.73                              

Add/(Less)  Profit on Sale of Assets (2.74)                                      (1.44)                                      

Add/(Less)  Depreciation 31,175.95                              18,222.63                              

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 37,977.05                              (13,930.67)                             

Changes in Working Capital 4,078.32                                2,391.46                                

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables (22.70)                                    (6.55)                                      

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables 4,101.02                                2,398.01                                

Direct taxes paid (net of refund) (1,079.81)                               (197.79)                                  

Net Cash (used in) Operating Activity (Total A) 40,975.56                              (11,737.00)                             

(B) Cash Flow From Investing Activities

Purchase of Property Plant Equipments including Capital Works in Progress (3,37,033.36)                          (1,90,093.17)                          

Disposal of assets 4.79                                       131.09                                   

Interest Received 10,065.69                              6,089.87                                

Net Cash Flow From/(Used in) Investing Activity (Total B) (3,26,962.88)                          (1,83,872.21)                          

(C) Cash Flow From Financing Activities

Proceeds from Share Capital 1,14,542.94                           73,941.00                              

Increase/(Decrease) in Borrowings/ Debt 1,76,630.85                           1,55,969.44                           

Increase/(Decrease) in DPR Grant  100.00                                   550.00                                   

Increase/(Decrease) in Share Application Money (4,458.94)                               (4,841.00)                               

Payment of lease liability (147.60)                                  (268.20)                                  

Finance Cost (7,556.81)                               (13,466.73)                             

Net Cash Flow From Financing Activity (Total C) 2,79,110.44                           2,11,884.51                           

(D) Net Changes in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A) + (B) + (C) (6,876.88)                               16,275.30                              

(E) Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 18,109.12                              1,833.82                                

(F) Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year (D) + (E) 11,232.24                              18,109.12                              

Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents comprise (Ref. Note - 4 ( c ) )

Balances with Banks 

On Current Accounts 11,211.92                              18,097.87                              

Cash on hands 20.32                                     11.25                                     

Total Cash & Cash Equivalents 11,232.24                              18,109.12                              

Statement of Cashflow for the year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars
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Notes to Cash Flow Statement

(a)

(b)

(c)

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Impact of Change in working capital including related to CWIP 1,15,352.76                           1,31,336.45                           

    -Increase/(Decrease) in Long Term Provisions 431.26                                   307.13                                   

    -Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables 4,101.02                                2.67                                       

    -Increase/(Decrease)  in Short Term Provisions 53.91                                     60.75

    -Increase/(Decrease)  in Other Current Liabilites 75,209.50                              2,49,885.52                           

    -(Increase)/Decrease in Long Loans & Advances (37,648.00)                             (33,887.66)                             

    -(Increase)/Decrease in Short Term Loans & Advances 73,162.41                              (84,260.44)                             

    -(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets 42.66                                     (771.52)                                  

(d)

The accompanying Notes 1-42  form an integral part of the Financial Statements 

As per our report of even date attached

For, D G S M & Co. For and on behalf of the board of directors of 

Chartered Accountants Gujarat Metro Rail corporation ( GMRC ) Limited

ICAI Firm Registration No. 101606W

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
CA Devesh C. Shah S.S.Rathore Ashwinikumar Yadav
Partner Managing Director Director
M.No. 036830 DIN:00128987 DIN: 06581753

Sd/- Sd/-

Anand Singh Bisht Hiteshkumar Bhamare

Director (Project & Planning) Company Secretary

DIN: 10064698 ACS: 33182

Place : Ahmedabad Place : Gandhinagar

Date  : 14/09/2024 Date  : 10/09/2024

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS -7 on Statement of Cash Flows:         

Cash Flow from Financing activities( increase in long term debt ) includes non cash changes of foreign exchange translation gain/ (loss) of ` 57,541.67 

Lakhs (PY `  (13,523.45) Lakhs ) and Interest on Sub Debt  ( Non Cash Changes ) of  `  3,424.57 Lakhs ( PY `  2,620.84 Lakhs ) as on 31st March 2023. 

The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Ind AS - 7.

Purchases of Property, Plant and Equipments are stated inclusive of movements of Capital Work in Progress.

Purchase of Property Plant Equipments including related to Capital W.I.P is ` 3,36,420.87 Lakhs (PY ` 1,90,093.71 Lakhs) out of which impact of working

capital change thereon is `  1,15,323.70 Lakhs (PY `  1,31,336.45 Lakhs) (as below).
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Gujarat Metro Rail Corporation (GMRC) Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2024 

 

Corporate Information 

 
Gujarat Metro Rail Corporation (GMRC) Limited (‘the Company’) (CIN: U60200GJ2010SGC059407) 

is domiciled and incorporated in India with equal equity participation of Government of India and 

Government of Gujarat. Name of the company has been changed to Gujarat Metro Rail Corporation 

(GMRC) Limited vide certificate of incorporation pursuant to change of name w.e.f. 31-12-2018. The 

company is executing Phase I of Ahmedabad Metro Rail Project, Phase II of Ahmedabad Metro Rail 

Project connecting Ahmedabad & Gandhinagar and Phase I of Surat Metro Rail Project. The registered 

office of the company is situated at Block No.1, First Floor, Karmayogi Bhawan, Sector 10/A, 

Gandhinagar 382010. The Company carries on the business to set up, manage, operate and maintain 

a rail based mass rapid transport system in Gujarat to provide the general public with a fast reliable, 

convenient, efficient, modern and economic mode of public transport Rail Project. 

 
Note 1: Material Accounting Policies 

 
The note provides a list of the Material Accounting Policies adopted by the company in preparation of 

the Financial Statements. Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years 

presented, unless otherwise stated. 

 
1.1 Statement of compliance 

 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting 

Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 

2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to 

time. Further, Guidance Note/ Announcement issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants 

of India (ICAI) are also considered wherever applicable. The company has uniformly applied the 

accounting policies during the period presented. 

 
1.2 Basis of preparation 

 

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention on accrual basis, 

except for the followings assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value amount: 

 Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value 

 Defined benefit plans – plan assets measured at fair value 
 

Historical cost is generally based on the value of the consideration given in exchange for goods 

and services. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 

liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. All 

assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current considering operating 

cycle period of 12 months. 

 
These financial statements have been prepared in Indian Rupee (INR/ `) which is the functional 

currency of the Company and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs (`1,00,000), except 

when otherwise indicated. 

 
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting 

standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard required a change 

in the accounting policy hitherto in use. The company has generally followed the policy and best 

practices as prevalent in the industry. 
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The material accounting policies used in preparation of the financial statements have been discussed 

in the respective notes. 

 
The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the meeting of 
Board of Directors dated 10-09-2024. 

 

1.3 Use of Estimates and Management Judgement 

 
The preparation of the financial statements are in conformity with Ind AS which requires the 

management to make estimates, judgements and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 

of revenues and expenses during the reported period and the reported amount of assets and 

liabilities (Including contingent liabilities) as on the date of financial statement. 

 
Management believe that the estimates used in preparation of financial statements are prudent 

and reasonable. Future results could differ from these estimates. Difference between actual 

results and estimates are recognised in the period in which results are crystallised. 

 
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the 

accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any 

future periods affected. 

 
This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or 

complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and 

assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information 

about each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes together with 

information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements. 

 
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of 

resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the following 

notes: 

 
Note 20 Current/deferred tax expense 

Note 21 Contingent liabilities and assets 

Note 23(B) Measurement of defined benefit obligations 

 
1.4 Foreign currencies 

 
1.4.1 Functional and Presentation Currency 

 
Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary 

economic environment in which the Company operates ('the functional currency'). These financial 

statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the functional and presentation 

currency of the Company. Any currency other than functional currency of the entity is foreign 

currency. 
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1.4.2 Transactions and balances 

 
Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency using the exchange rates 

at the dates of transactions. Foreign exchange gain / (loss) resulting from the settlement of such 

transactions and from the translations of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 

currencies at the year-end exchange rates are the Gain / Loss resulting from such translation 

are included in the profit & loss. Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to 

borrowing costs are presented as borrowing costs. All other foreign exchange [gain] / (loss) are 

presented in the statement of profit and loss account on a net basis either as other expense / 

other income. 

 
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using 

exchange rates at the date when fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets 

and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain / (loss). Gain/Loss 

on transactions of long-term liabilities incurred to acquire fixed assets is treated as an 

adjustment to the carrying cost of fixed assets. 

 
1.5 Fair value measurement 

 
The company measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair 

value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly  

transaction  between  market  participants  at  the  measurement  date.  The  fair  value 

measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 

liability takes place either: 

 
 In the principal market for the asset or liability 

Or 

 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 

liability. 

 
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

 
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 

would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their 

economic best interest. 

 
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's 

ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling 

it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

 
The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 

sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable 

inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

 
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements 

are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level 

input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 
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 Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or 

liabilities. 

 Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 

value measurement is directly or indirectly observable. 

 Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 

value measurement is unobservable. 

 
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the 

company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re- 

assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

 
The company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair 

value measurement and for non-recurring measurement. External valuers are involved for 

valuation of significant assets. Involvement of external valuers is decided upon by the 

management after discussion with and approval by the company’s Audit Committee. Selection 

criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional 

standards are maintained. Valuers are normally rotated every three years. The management 

decides, after discussions with the Company’s external valuers, which valuation techniques and 

inputs to use for each case. 

 
At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and 

liabilities which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the company’s 

accounting policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the 

latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other 

relevant documents. 

 
The management, in conjunction with the company’s external valuers, also compares the 

change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine 

whether the change is reasonable on yearly basis. 

 
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and 

liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level 

of the fair value hierarchy, as explained above. 

 
This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are 

given in the relevant notes. 

 
 Disclosures  for  valuation  methods,  Significant  accounting  judgements,  estimates  and 

assumptions 

 Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy 

 Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) 

 
1.6 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost of acquisition / construction, net of accumulated 

depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Costs directly attributable to acquisition are 

capitalized until the property, plant and equipment are ready for use, as intended by 

management. 
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Expenditure incurred on enabling assets viz utility diversion, rehabilitation and resettlement 

which is compulsorily required to be incurred and directly attributable to the construction of 

MRTS (Metro Rapid Transport System) is capitalised with the respective identifiable assets. 

 
Capitalisation of assets has been done for assets which are identified as ready to use by the 

management of the company. 

 
Amount Paid for acquisition of private land is capitalised upon receiving original title after 

registration or upon issuance of award by the competent authority. Any enhanced compensation 

demanded by the land owners shall only be accounted based on actual decision of courts or the 

decision of the private negotiation committee accepted by the management. 

 
Subsequent expenditure, including replacement costs where applicable, incurred for an item of 

property plant and equipment are added to cost of assets only if they increase the future 

benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance and 

the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any assets or component 

of assets accounted for as a separate asset is de-recognised when replaced. All other repairs 

and maintenance expenditure are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which 

they are incurred. 

 
The cost also includes interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying fixed 

assets up to the date on which the assets is ready for its intended use and net of any trade 

discounts and rebates and other incidental expenses and an initial estimate of the costs of 

dismantling, removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located, if any. In case of 

asset put to use, where final settlement of bills is yet to be effected, capitalisation is done on 

provisional basis subject to necessary adjustments in the year of final settlement. 

 
Spares having useful life of more than one year are capitalised under respective heads. 

 
1.6.1 Component accounting of assets: 

 
Components having different useful life as compared to main assets and having it’s carrying 

value more than 10% in relation to the overall carrying value of the assets or ` 10,00,000 

whichever is lesser are depreciated separately. The Company has identified, reviewed, tested 

and determined the componentisation of the all assets purchased as well as capitalised during 

the year. Land, Track Work (Permanent Way) and Intangible Assets are not componentised as 

identification of separate components is impracticable. 

 
Remaining components or insignificant parts have been combined together with the main 

assets. 

 
1.6.2 Capital Work in Progress: 

 
Capital Work in Progress includes expenditure incurred on assets, which are yet to be 

commissioned and also includes capital inventory. The expenditure will be kept as Capital 

Work-in-Progress (CWIP) till the defined project phase is completed after which the same will 

be transferred / allocated to the identifiable Fixed Assets. 
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All the directly identifiable and ascertainable expenditure, incidental and related to construction 

incurred during the period of construction on a project, till it is commissioned, is kept as Capital 

work in progress (CWIP) as Incidental Expenditure pending capitalisation and after 

commissioning the same is transferred / allocated to the respective “Property, Plant and 

Equipment”. 

 
Income pertaining to Sale of tender documents is netted-off adjusted against expenditure 

incurred during construction period. Liquidated damages (LD) recovered is adjusted netted-off 

against expenditure incurred during construction period. No income tax provision has been 

made on liquidated damages as the same has been considered as capital receipt. 

 
Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each 

balance sheet date are classified as capital advances under other non- current assets. 

 
The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements 

upon sale or retirement of the asset. 

 
All incidental expenditure related to project is allocated to respective projects on the systematic 

allocation basis. 

 
1.6.3 Allocation of Interest During Construction: 

 
Interest on loans for funding specified component/project as per terms of loan is capitalised as 

interest during construction (CWIP) every year. 

 
Interest during construction in respect of qualifying assets commissioned during the year is 

allocated in the ratio which the value of commissioned assets bears to the qualifying CWIP as at 

the end of the year. 

 
1.6.4 De-recognition 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future 

economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on 

derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and 

the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset 

is derecognised. 

 
1.6.5 Depreciation 

 
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment except freehold land is provided on the straight- 

line method over useful lives of the assets as prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies 

Act 2013 except for the assets mentioned hereunder. Based on the management estimates the 

residual value of the assets has been considered as 5% in case of capitalised assets of Priority 

Reach 1 of Ahmedabad Metro Project and rest of the assets as Nil. 
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In case of following assets, depreciation has been provided based on technical estimation of the 

useful life of the assets: 

 
Nature of Assets Useful Life 

Viaduct 60 Years 

Rolling Stock 35 Years 

Permanent Way 30 Years 

Containers and Security Cabins 5 Years 

Signage 3 Years 

Solar Systems, Power Generator Set, Motors & GPS Instrument 5 Years 

Barricading 5 Years 

Mobile Handset costing more than Rs.5000 provided to 

employees 

 
2 Years 

Depot Building (factory and office) 60 Years 

Station Building 60 Years 

Escalators & Elevators 30 Years 

Telecom Equipment 15 Years 

Automatic Fare collection System 10 Years 

Platform Screen Door and Signalling Equipment 15 Years 

 

Library Books, CD and Assets costing Rs.5000 or less (excluding immovable assets) are not 

capitalised and recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss account in the year 

of acquisition. 

In case of lease hold improvements, depreciation has been provided considering either tenure 

of agreement or 5 years whichever is less. 

 
In case the leasehold asset is vacated earlier than tenure of agreement, the total unamortized 

balance will be written off to the Statement of Profit & Loss in the year in which the premise is 

vacated. 

 
The management believes that the useful life as given above best represent the period over 

which management expects to use these assets. Hence the useful lives for these assets are 

different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act 

2013 on the basis of technical estimation. 

 
Depreciation on assets purchased/sold during a period is proportionately charged for the period 

of use with reference to date of addition / disposal. 

 
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment 

are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 
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1.7 Leases 

 
1.7.1 Company as a lessee: 

 
At the date of commencement of the lease, the company recognises a Right-of-Use asset 

(“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, 

except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short term leases) and leases of low 

value assets. 

 
For short term and leases of low value assets, the Company recognises the lease payments as 

an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease charge payable 

against each lease agreement over the total tenure of lease period above Rs.1.00 crore is 

considered as material and accordantly this standard is applied. 

 
The ROU assets are initially recognised at cost, which consist of initial amount of the lease 

liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the 

lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. 

 
The ROU Assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 

impairment losses, if any. 

 
The ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the 

shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. 

 
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments. The 

lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily 

determinable, using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR). The lease liability is subsequently re- 

measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the 

carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made. 

 
A lease liability is re-measured upon the occurrence of certain events such as a change in the 

lease term or a change in an index or rate used to determine lease payments. The re- 

measurement normally also adjusts the leased assets. 

 
The Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and 

lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows. 

 
In respect of assets acquired on lease by paying full consideration, being the transaction price, 

such assets have been recognised under the respective asset head at transaction price and 

such consideration paid amortised over lease term. In other cases, i-e, where lease 

consideration is deferred over lease term, ROU asset is recognised with corresponding lease 

liability if the asset meets recognition criteria of Ind AS 116. 

 
ROU Asset and Lease liability are derecognised upon completion of lease term and if such 

lease is cancelled prior to completion of term, the balances pertaining to said accounts are 

adjusted and any further adjustment, if any required is made in statement of profit and loss. 

Lease modifications, if any, are accounted in manner as prescribed in Ind AS 116. 
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1.7.2 Company as a lessor: 

 
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of 

ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income, if any, from operating 

lease is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease except the case 

where incremental lease reflects inflationary effect and lease expense is accounted in such 

case by actual rent for the period. 

 
Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of 

ownership are transferred from the company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under 

finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company’s net investment in the leases. 

Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate 

of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease. 

 

1.8 Borrowing cost 

 
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with 

the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded 

as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. Borrowing cost that are directly attributable to the 

acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period 

of time that is required to complete and prepare the assets for its intended use or sale. Borrowing 

cost of the funds utilized generally for acquisition, construction or production of qualifying 

assets is allocated to the qualifying assets by applying a capitalization rate to the expenditures 

made during year to that assets. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial 

period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. Other borrowing cost are expensed in 

the period in which they are incurred. Investment income earned on the temporary 

investment of specific borrowing pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted 

from the borrowing cost eligible for capitalisation, if they are being earned during active 

development of such qualifying asset. 

 
1.9 Intangible Assets 

 
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment. Intangible 

assets are amortized over their respective individual estimated useful life on straight line basis, 

from the date they are available for use. Amortisation method and useful lives are reviewed at 

the end of each financial year. 

 

1.9.1 Amortisation: 

 
Intangible assets including software which is not an integral part of related hardware are 

amortised on Straight Line Method over a period of legal right to use or 5 years whichever is 

earlier. 

 

Way Leave charges paid to Railways are recognised as intangible assets and amortised on 

straight-line method over the period of 70 years. 
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1.10 Impairment of non-financial assets 

 
Intangible assets and Property, Plant and Equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever 

events or change in circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. 

For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of the fair value less 

cost to sell and value in used) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does 

not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other asset. In such case, 

the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs. 

 
If such assets are considered to be impaired, then impairment to be recognised in the Statement 

of Profit and Loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets 

exceed the estimated recoverable amount of asset. 

 

1.11 Revenue Recognition 

 
1.11.1 Recognition and Measurement 

 
Revenue is recognised when the Company satisfies performance obligation as per the identified 

contract(s) with a customer. Revenue is measured at allocated transaction price to the 

performance obligation as per the identified contract(s) with customer. The amount of 

consideration to which the Company is entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services is 

considered as transaction price while recognition of revenue. Amount disclosed as revenue are 

net of returns, trade allowances, rebates, taxes, and amount collected on behalf of third parties. 

 

The accounting policies for the specific revenue streams of the company as summarized below: 

 
1.11.2 Fare Box Revenue: 

 

Income from fare collection is recognised on the basis of use of tokens and group booking 

tickets. Amount disclosed as revenue are net of returns, trade allowances, rebates and discounts. 

 
1.11.3 Non Fare Box Revenue: 

 
Non fare box revenue includes advertisement, rent income for providing space, sponsorships and 
others. Such revenue is recognised on straight line basis over the period of the contract/ 
arrangement. 

 
1.11.4 Interest income: 

 
Interest on term deposits with banks and/ or Financial Institution is recognised as income in the 

statement of profit and loss, using effective interest rate method. 

 
1.11.5 Other Incidental income: 

 
Income from sale of tender documents and sale of scrap is recognised as income on accrual 

basis. 
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1.12 Financial instruments – initial recognition and subsequent measurement 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a 

financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

 

1.12.1 Financial assets 

 
(i) Initial recognition and measurement of financial assets 

 
The company recognizes financial assets when it becomes a party to the contractual provision 

of the instruments. At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair 

value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, 

transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset. 

 

(ii) Subsequent measurement of financial assets 

 
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories: 

 
 Financial assets at amortised cost 

 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

 
The Company classifies its financial assets in the above-mentioned categories based on: 

 
 The Company’s business model for managing the financial assets, and 

 The contractual cash flows characteristics of the financial asset. 

 Financial assets at amortised cost: 

 
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if: 

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial 

assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and 

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that 

are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

 
This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial 

assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) 

method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on 

acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is 

included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised 

in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables. 

 
 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 

 
A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if: 

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both 

collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and 

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that 

are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 
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Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at 

each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other 

comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, 

impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On de- 

recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified 

from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI financial asset is reported as 

interest income using the EIR method. 

 
 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

 
FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial asset, which does not meet 

the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. 

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a financial asset, which otherwise meets 

amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income criteria, as at fair value 

through profit or loss. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates 

a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The 

Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL. 

 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with 

all changes recognised in Statement of profit and loss. 

 
(iii) De-recognition of financial assets 

 
A financial asset is derecognised when: 

- the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, 

or 

- The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset or 

has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a 

third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred 

substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred 

nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of 

the asset. 

 
When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered 

into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and 

rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks 

and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to 

recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that 

case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the 

associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the 

Company has retained. 

 
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured 

at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration 

that the Company could be required to repay. 
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(iv) Impairment of financial assets 

 
For recognition of impairment loss on financial assets and risk exposure, the Company 

determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial 

recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for 

impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a 

subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a 

significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising 

impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL. 

 
Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the 

expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which 

results from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the 

reporting date. 

 
ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as 

income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected in a 

separate line under the head “Other expenses” in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for 

various financial instruments is described below: 

 Financial assets measured as at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e. as 

an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance 

reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does 

not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount. 

 
1.12.2 Financial Liabilities 

 
(i) Initial recognition and measurement of financial liabilities 

 
The company recognizes financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provision 

of the instruments. All financial liabilities are recognised at fair value on initial recognition. 

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial liabilities, 

which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are deducted from the fair value on initial 

recognition. 

 
(ii) Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities 

 
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as 

described below: 

 
 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for 

trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through 

profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the 

purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial 

instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in 

hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. 

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss. 
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 Loans and Borrowings 

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing 

and interest-free borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR 

method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are 

derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. 

 
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition 

and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as 

finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. 

 
(iii) De-recognition of financial liabilities 

 
A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognised from its balance sheet when, 

and only when, it is extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged 

or cancelled or expired. 

 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 

different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange 

or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a 

new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of 

profit or loss. 

 
1.12.3 Offsetting of financial instruments 

 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance 

sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is 

an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable 

in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the 

group or the counterparty. 

 
1.13 Cash and cash equivalent 

 
Cash and cash equivalent include cash in hand, demand deposit with bank and other short-term 

deposits with a maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition, which are subject 

to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

 
1.14 Government Grant 

 
Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be 

received, and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an 

expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related 

costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, 

it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset. 

 
The Company recognised the interest free subordinate debt at fair value on initial recognition 

which differ from its transaction value. The difference between the transaction value and fair 

value is recognised as Government grant since it represents as assistance received from 

government in the form of waiver of interest. As the financial support from the government is for 

the capital expenditure of development of infrastructure for Ahmedabad Metro Rail Project i.e.  
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Grant related to the non-current assets, the benefits is recognised in the statement of Profit & 

Loss account over the useful life of the assets in the proportions of depreciation expense on the 

assets. 

 
1.15 Taxation 

 
Tax expenses is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss for the 

period in respect of current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in accordance with 

the Income Tax Law) and deferred tax (reflecting the tax effects of timing differences between 

accounting income and taxable income for the period). Income tax expenses are recognised in 

statement of profit or loss except tax expenses related to items recognised directly in reserves 

(including statement of other comprehensive income) which are recognised with the underlying 

items. 
 

 

1.15.1 Current Tax 

 
The current tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's 

taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by 

changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to 

unused tax losses. 

 
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or 

substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period i.e. as per the provisions of the Income 

Tax Act, 1961, as amended from time to time. Management periodically evaluates positions 

taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to 

interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to 

be paid to the tax authorities. 

 
Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented in the balance sheet after 

off-setting advance tax paid and income tax provision arising in the same tax jurisdiction for 

relevant tax paying units and where the Company is able to and intends to settle the asset and 

liability on a net basis. 

 
1.15.2 Deferred Tax 

 
Deferred tax is provided in full on temporary difference arising between the tax bases of the 

assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in financial statements at the reporting date. 

Deferred taxes are recognised in respect of deductible temporary differences being the 

difference between taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and are 

capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods, the carry forward of unused tax losses 

and the carry forward of unused tax credits. 

 
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or 

substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the 

related deferred income tax asset is realised, or the deferred income tax liability is settled. 

 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax 

losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary 

differences and losses.  In case of temporary differences that arise  from initial recognition of 

assets or liabilities in a transaction (other than business combination) that affect neither the 

taxable profit nor the accounting profit, deferred tax assets are not recognised. 109



 
     

 

          Gujarat Metro Rail Corporation (GMRC) Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24                 
 

 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to 

the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or 

part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed 

at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future 

taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

 
Any tax credit available including Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) under the provision of the 

Income Tax Act, 1961 is recognised as deferred tax to the extent that it is probable that future 

taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax credits can be utilised. The said 

asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown under the head 

deferred tax asset. 

 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset 

current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation 

authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the Company has a legally 

enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and 

settle the liability simultaneously. 

 
Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to 

items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is 

also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. 

 
1.16 Employee Benefits 

Defined benefit plan 

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is computed at the end of each financial year 

on the basis of an actuarial valuation by an actuary appointed for the purpose as per projected 

unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by 

discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the 

reporting period on the government bonds. 

 
The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined 

benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit 

expense in the statement of profit and loss. 

 
Re measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustment and changes in the 

actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other 

comprehensive income. They are included in the retained earnings in the Statement of changes 

in equity and in the Balance Sheet. Changed in the present value of the defined benefit 

obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in 

statement of profit and loss as past service cost. 

 

Defined contribution plan 

 
The company pays provident fund contributions for eligible employees to Government 

administered provident funds as per local regulations. The company has no further payment 

obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as 

employee benefit expense during the period in which the employee renders the related service. 
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Short Term Employee Benefits 

 
All employee benefit payable within 12 months of service such as salaries, bonus, ex-gratia, 

medical benefit etc. are recognised in the year in which the employees render the related 

service and are presented as current employee benefit obligations. It is to be provided at 

undiscounted amount during the period based on the service rendered by the employees. 
 

Other long-term employment benefits: 

 
The liabilities for earned leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the 

end of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore 

measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services 

provided by the employees up to the end of reporting period using the projected unit credit 

method. The benefits are discounted using the market at the end of the reporting period that 

have terms approximating to the terms of related obligation. 

 
The obligation is presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the Company does not 

have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting period, 

regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur. 

 

1.17 Earnings per share 

 
Basic Earnings Per Share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the profit / loss for the period attributable 

to Equity Shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during 

the period. Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the profit / loss for the 

period attributable to Equity Shareholders by the aggregation of weighted average number of 

equity shares outstanding during the period and potential equity shares. Potential equity shares 

mean instruments convertible into equity shares in future period like Share application money 

pending allotment and instruments entirely equity in nature. Earning considered in ascertaining 

the EPS is the net profit/ loss for the period less any attributable tax thereto for the period 

 
1.18 Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operation 

 
Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered 

principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is 

considered highly probable. They are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair 

value less costs to sell. Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortized while they are 

classified as held for sale. Non-current assets classified as held for sale are presented separately 

from the other assets in the balance sheet. 

 
A discontinued operation is a component of the Company that has been disposed of or is 

classified as held for sale and that represents a separate major line of business or geographical 

area of operations, is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business or 

area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale. The results of 

discontinued operations are presented separately in the statement of profit and loss. 

 
An impairment loss for discontinued operation and/ or non-current assets held for sale is 

recognized for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset to fair value less costs to sell. 
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1.19 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

 
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as 

a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits 

will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 

obligation. 

 

Provisions are measured at management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle 

the present obligation at the end of the reporting period and are not discounted to present value. 

The estimates of outcome and financial effect are determined by the judgment of the 

management, supplemented by experience of similar transactions and, in some cases, reports 

from independent experts. 

 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is possible obligation arising from the past 

events, existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or 

more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the company or a present obligation 

that arise from past event where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be 

required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. 

 
A contingent asset is disclosed by way of notes to financial statements, where an inflow of 

economic benefits is probable. 

 
1.20 Inventories: 

 
Inventories are valued at cost or net realisation value whichever is lower. Cost includes cost of 

purchase and other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and 

condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis. The Company is in the business of 

providing service of Mass Rapid Transport System and does not have inventories.  

 
1.21 Current versus non-current classification 

 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current 

classification. 

 

An asset is current when it is: 

 Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle; 

 Held primarily for the purpose of trading; 

 Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or 

 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability 

for at least twelve months after the reporting period. 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 
 

A liability is current when: 

 It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; 

 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 

 It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 

 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve 

months after the reporting period. 
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Operating cycle of the Company is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing 

and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. As the Company’s normal operating cycle is 

not clearly identifiable, it is considered to be twelve months. 
 

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 
 

 

1.22 New Accounting standards, amendments and interpretations adopted by the Company 

effective from April 1, 2024: 

 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing 

standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. 

Fo r  t he  yea r  ended  March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments 

to the existing standards applicable to the company.  

 

113



 

Gujarat Metro Rail Corporation (GMRC) Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24                 

 ANNUAL REP 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 2 : Property, Plant and Equipment 

( `  Lakhs )

Particulars Freehold land
 Leasehold 

Improvements
Building Viaduct

Electrical 

Installation and 

Electrical 

Equipment

Plant & 

Machinery

Track Work 

(Permanent 

Way)

Traction 

Equipments
Rolling Stock

Escalators & 

Elevators
Vehicles

Furniture & 

Fixture

Office 

Equipment

Computer & 

Other 

Hardware

Telecom & 

Signalling

Automatic Fare 

Collection & 

Platform Screen 

Door

Right of Use 

Asset - Buildings
Total               CWIP

Gross Block

As at April 1, 2022 70,551.13             468.69                     70,368.43                    48,848.63               10,172.32            6,695.81               8,970.81              13,535.29             44,924.01         2,068.59           148.32                 303.81                368.24                 539.38               10,906.96          4,469.08               772.75                  2,94,112.27               7,93,005.36         

Additions 3,518.62               -                          2,02,125.01                 2,96,847.05            37,795.35            1,199.24               36,487.39            47,171.18             78,993.61         11,955.47         -                       46.16                  632.24                 236.95               42,171.51          16,157.03             319.76                  7,75,656.57               3,17,566.14         

Deductions / Adjustments -                        -                          -                               -                          -                       -                       -                       -                        -                    -                    -                      -                      (12.72)                  (16.17)               -                     -                        (382.90)                 (411.79)                      (7,70,867.72)       

As at March 31, 2023 74,069.75             468.69                     2,72,493.44                 3,45,695.68            47,967.67            7,895.05               45,458.20            60,706.47             1,23,917.62      14,024.06         148.32                 349.97                987.76                 760.16               53,078.47          20,626.11             709.61                  10,69,357.05             3,39,703.78         

Additions 15,224.05             -                          37,678.37                    3,347.97                 11,831.77            428.33                  1,044.71              7,107.15               20,288.72         1,675.03           71.68                   152.17                98.85                   204.10               4,249.17            1,851.96               -                        1,05,254.03               4,28,420.25         

Deductions / Adjustments -                       -                          -                               -                         -                      -                       -                      -                       -                   -                   (13.17)                 -                     (19.65)                  (11.19)               -                    -                        -                        (44.01)                        (89,496.10)          

As at March 31, 2024 89,293.80             468.69                     3,10,171.81                 3,49,043.65            59,799.44            8,323.38               46,502.91            67,813.62             1,44,206.34      15,699.09         206.83                 502.14                1,066.96              953.07               57,327.64          22,478.07             709.61                  11,74,567.07             6,78,627.93         

Depreciation and Impairment

As at April 1, 2022 -                        468.69                     2,717.59                      2,337.32                 2,019.16              1,087.81               874.03                 1,901.67               1,787.01           82.60                92.59                   160.35                217.36                 389.93               862.99               427.86                  164.87                  15,591.83                  11,584.21            

Depreciation for the year -                        -                          2,847.04                      3,130.78                 2,116.42              565.47                  863.38                 2,399.12               2,653.01           256.51              16.60                   31.17                  142.72                 130.71               2,029.86            969.81                  294.12                  18,446.72                  -                       

Impairment for the year -                        -                          -                               -                          -                       -                       -                       -                        -                    -                    -                       -                      -                       -                    -                     -                        -                        -                             -                       

Deductions -                        -                          -                               -                          -                       -                       -                       -                        -                    -                    -                      -                      (10.72)                  (16.15)               -                     -                        (255.27)                 (282.14)                      -                       

As at March 31, 2023 -                        468.69                     5,564.63                      5,468.10                 4,135.58              1,653.28               1,737.41              4,300.79               4,440.02           339.11              109.19                 191.52                349.36                 504.49               2,892.85            1,397.67               203.72                  33,756.41                  11,584.21            

Depreciation for the year -                       -                          5,037.71                      5,527.73                 3,654.86             649.97                 1,473.15             4,148.95               3,716.06          481.60             18.64                  37.85                 213.39                 149.90              3,637.06            1,713.48               155.83                  30,616.18                  -                       

Impairment for the year -                        -                          -                               -                          -                       -                       -                       -                        -                    -                    -                       -                      -                       -                    -                     -                        -                        -                             -                       

Deductions -                        -                          -                               -                          -                       -                       -                       -                        -                    -                    (13.17)                 -                     (18.39)                  (10.40)               -                     -                        -                        (41.96)                        -                       

As at March 31, 2024 -                        468.69                     10,602.34                    10,995.83               7,790.44              2,303.25               3,210.56              8,449.74               8,156.08           820.71              114.66                 229.37                544.36                 643.99               6,529.91            3,111.15               359.55                  64,330.63                  11,584.21            

Net Block

As at March 31, 2024 89,293.80             -                          2,99,569.47                 3,38,047.82            52,009.00            6,020.13               43,292.35            59,363.88             1,36,050.26      14,878.38         92.17                   272.77                522.60                 309.08               50,797.73          19,366.92             350.06                  11,10,236.44             6,67,043.72         

As at March 31, 2023 74,069.75             -                          2,66,928.81                 3,40,227.58            43,832.09            6,241.77               43,720.79            56,405.68             1,19,477.60      13,684.95         39.13                   158.45                638.40                 255.67               50,185.62          19,228.44             505.89                  10,35,600.64             3,28,119.57         

Note: 

2) During the year,an interest of - `  (1,743.39) Lakhs ( PY -  `  564.76 Lakhs) has been capitalised as per Ind AS -23 Borrowing Cost.

1 ) As of 31st March,2024, amount of Freehold Land includes cost of land taken under Right to Fair Compensation and Transparency in Land Acquisition Rehabilitation and Resettlement Act, 2013 amounting to `  34,155.50 Lakhs ( PY `  24,311.90 Lakhs ), which has been capitalized on taking over possession of land, payment of full amount of consideration and execution of agreement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

3) Title deeds of immovable properties not held in the name of the Company

Relevant Line 

item in the 

Balance Sheet

Description of item of property
Gross Carrying 

Value

Title deed held 

in the name of

Whether title deed holder is a promoter, director or 

relative of promoter/ director or employee of 

promoter/ director

Property held 

since which date

Reason for not being in the name of the 

company

PPE Freehold Land 16,82,50,000 Government Promoter 31/03/2015 Administrative process for transfer of title

- Survey No 525, Kathvada of Gujarat is underway

   Vastral, Ahmedabad

   admeasuring 18,000 

    square metres

PPE Freehold Land -                     GIDC Entity controlled by promoter  Year 2015 Further action awaited from State 

- Plot No 56 and 285, (Gujarat Government.

   Ahmedabad Apparel Industrial

   Park SEZ admeasuring Development

    17.62 hectares Corporation)

4) During the FY 2023-24, there is no acquisition of any item of property, plant and equipment as a result of business combination.

5) The company follows Cost Model of recognition for all class of Property, Plant and Equipment and hence no revaluation is undertaken during FY 2023-24.
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